
AB
PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL

SUMMONS TO A MEETING

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Peterborough City Council, which will be held in the 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Peterborough on 

WEDNESDAY 20 MAY 2015 at 7.45 pm

AGENDA
Page No.

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 15 April 2015 3 - 20

4. Mayor's Announcements

5. Chief Executive's Announcements

6. Report of the Returning Officer 21 - 42

7. Political Groups and Group Officers 2015/ 2016 43 - 44

8. Appointment of Executive and Leader's Scheme of Delegation 45 - 46

(a)  To elect a Leader of the Council for a period of four years; and

(b)  To note the appointment of the Cabinet and the Leader’s Scheme of 
Delegation to Cabinet Members and officers.

9. Committee Structures, Delegations and Allocations 47 - 54

(a) To agree the Council's Committee structure and terms of reference;

(b) To note the programme of meeting schedules;

(c) To consider exempting committees from the political balance seat   
arrangements;

(d)  To agree the allocation of seats on Committees of the Council in 
accordance with political balance requirements; and

(e)  To agree the allocation of seats on Committee exempted from 
political balance seat arrangements.

Public Document Pack



Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

For more information about this meeting, including access arrangements and facilities for people with 
disabilities, please contact Gemma George in the City Council's Democratic Services Team on Peterborough 
(01733) 452268 or by email at democratic.services@peterborough.gov.uk

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268.

10. Appointments to Committees and Other Bodies 55 - 56

(a) Where the allocation to different political groups of the seats on 
committees and other bodies has been determined under Agenda 
Item 9, to receive and make appointments to those Committees

(b) To appoint the Chair and Vice-Chair of each of the Council’s 
Committees; 

(c) To make appointments to other exempted Committees and Bodies; 
and

(d) To confirm the appointments to outside organisations.

11. To approve the Standing Orders 57 - 100

Chief Executive

12 May 2015
Town Hall
Bridge Street
Peterborough

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 
available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recordi
ng.pdf

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf


AB
MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING HELD 

15 APRIL 2015

The Mayor – Councillor David Over
Present:

Councillors Ash, Brown, Casey, Cereste, Davidson, Day, Elsey, Ferris, Fitzgerald, 
Fletcher, Forbes, F Fox, JA Fox, JR Fox, Harper, Herdman, Hiller, Holdich, Iqbal, 
Jamil, Johnson, Khan, Knowles, Lamb, Lane, Lee, Maqbool, Martin, Miners, Murphy, 
Nadeem, Nawaz, North, Okonkowski, Peach, Rush, Sanders, Saltmarsh, Sandford, 
Scott, Seaton, Serluca, Shabbir, Shaheed, Sharp, Shearman, Stokes, Swift, Sylvester 
and Thulbourn.

1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Councillors Allen, Fower, Harrington and Thacker.

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3. Minutes of the meetings held on 4 March 2015

3.1 Extraordinary Council Meeting 4 March 2015

The minutes of the extraordinary Council Meeting held on 4 March 2015 were 
approved as a true and accurate record.

3.2 Council Meeting 4 March 2015

The minutes of the Council Meeting held on 4 March 2015 were approved as a true 
and accurate record.

COMMUNICATIONS 

4. Mayor’s Announcements

Members noted the report outlining the Mayor’s engagements for the period 
commencing 3 March 2015 to 12 April 2015.

5. Leader’s Announcements

Councillor Cereste announced that Councillor Nick Arculus had resigned his position 
as West Ward Councillor. He thanked Councillor Arculus for all the work he had 
undertaken over the years, particularly in relation to Scrutiny.

The Group Leaders echoed Councillor Cereste’s comments and wished Councillor 
Arculus well for the future. 

6. Chief Executive’s Announcements

There were no announcements from the Chief Executive. 

3



PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

7. Questions with Notice by Members of the Public 

There were no questions submitted by members of the public.

8. Petitions 

(a) Presented by members of the public

There were no petitions from members of the public.

(b) Presented by Members

Councillor Shearman presented a petition on behalf of the residents of Nottingham 
Way. The petition was in relation to concerns about the increasing numbers of 
vehicles parking in Nottingham Way, particularly in the stretch close to Newark 
Avenue. The petition called for the Council to extend the current parking restrictions 
further along the road.

RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORTS

9. Executive and Committee Recommendations to Council

(a) Cabinet Recommendation – Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

Cabinet at its meeting of 7 April 2015, received a report which followed the 
Examination in Public of the Peterborough Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Draft 
Charging Schedule (PDCS). The report explained the outcome of the Examiner’s 
report on the Draft Charging Schedule, the proposed modifications to the final 
charging schedule and associated policies and proposed a formal adoption date of 24 
April 2015. 

Cabinet endorsed the recommendations contained within the report and 
recommended the adoption of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to Council. 

Councillor Hiller introduced the report and moved the recommendations contained 
within. He further highlighted the positive strides made across the city relating to 
housing, schooling, jobs provision and healthcare, to name a few, and summarised 
how the CIL would work. 

Councillor Serluca seconded the recommendations and reserved her right to speak.

Members debated the recommendations and in summary raised points including:

 There were concerns that CIL had not been implemented to coincide with the 
cessation of the Planning Obligation Implementation Scheme (POIS);

 The charging levels did appear quite high;
 The CIL had to be agreed in its entirety otherwise it could not be approved at 

all;
 Parished areas would receive 25% of funds collected. For those areas 

unparished, the funds would go directly to the Council. The Cabinet needed to 
make the parishing of all urban areas a priority.

Councillor Serluca did not wish to exercise her right to speak as seconder of the 
recommendations. 

4



Councillor Hiller did not have anything further to add in summing up. 

A vote was taken (50 for, 1 abstention) and it was RESOLVED that:

1.  The Examiner’s Report into the Draft CIL Charging Schedule is considered and the 
recommendations and conclusions that underpin them are accepted;

2. The Peterborough Community Infrastructure levy (CIL) Charging Schedule is 
adopted, with CIL to come into effect for all planning applications approved on or 
after 24 April 2015;

3. The Council’s CIL Supporting Policies Document (including Regulation 123 List, 
Instalment Policy, Payment in Kind Policy and Statement of Exceptional 
Circumstances Relief) be adopted and published;

4.  Delegated authority be given to the Director of Growth and Regeneration (a) to 
take all steps necessary to implement the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010 (as amended), and (b) to take all necessary enforcement action 
under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended);

5. Local Validation Requirements be amended to require the submission of CIL liability 
details from 24 April 2015;

6. 5% of CIL is retained for the administration and governance costs incurred by the 
Council, in accordance with the CIL Regulations; and,

7. The Community Infrastructure Levy is added to the Council’s Major Policy 
Framework and to approve the consequential Constitutional amendments 
resulting.

10.    Questions on the Executive Decisions made since the last meeting

Councillor Cereste introduced the report which detailed executive decisions taken 
since the last meeting, including:

1. Decisions from the Cabinet meeting held on 20 March 2015;
2. Decisions from the Cabinet meeting held on 1 April 2015;
3. Use of the Council’s Call-In mechanism, which had not been invoked since the 

previous meeting;
4. Special Urgency and Waive of Call-In Provisions, which had not been invoked 

since the previous meeting; and
5. Cabinet Member Decisions taken during the period 12 February 2015 to 30 March 

2015.

Questions were asked about the following:

Transforming Day Opportunities for Adults Under 65
Councillor Murphy queried why the service had not been out to tender and whether 
reviews would be undertaken in order to ensure those with the most needs would not 
be let down. Councillor Fitzgerald stated that consultation had been undertaken widely 
in the public sector, however no service providers had come forward. No tender had 
been undertaken subsequently as the College was part of Peterborough City Council. 
With regards to the needs of individuals, there was not a ‘one size fits all’ approach to 
the service and the most vulnerable would be provided for accordingly.

Hampton Gardens Secondary School – Collaboration Agreement
Councillor Khan queried whether the local authority would be responsible for financing 
should the school fall on hard times. Councillor Holdich advised that it would be the 
responsibility of the Department of Education.

5



Sale of Greenwood House
Councillor Murphy queried why Greenwood House had been sold for less than market 
value, and why it had been sold as there was a lack of residential home provision in 
the city. Councillor Seaton advised that the Council was under a legal obligation to 
obtain the market value for the property. The bid received had been higher than any 
developer bids for the site.

Street Scene Services
Councillor Ash queried whether alternative bin provisions were being explored. 
Councillor Elsey advised that alternative provisions were being explored, namely the 
replacement of a number of lamp post bins with larger floor mounted bins the capacity 
of which was much larger. 

Councillor Ferris sought confirmation of when the new bins were to be rolled out. 
Councillor Elsey advised that roll out had already started. Many bins were made to 
order and there were different style bins for different locations. 

Councillor Khan queried whether an alternative was to be explored for mechanical 
cleaners which did not work as well down narrow streets. Councillor Elsey advised 
that there were alternative machines being implemented called ‘The Glutton’, which 
were effective in any road. 

COUNCIL BUSINESS

11.    Questions on Notice

(a) To the Mayor
(b) To the Leader or Member of the Cabinet
(c) To the Chair of any Committee or Sub-Committee

Questions (b) to the Leader or Member of the Cabinet were raised and taken as read 
in respect of the following:

1. Dukesmead underpass redecoration;
2. One way system, Robert Avenue;
3. Development plans for the market;
4. Road works on Bourges Boulevard;
5. The impact of library and culture cuts;
6. Street obstacles and dangerous crossings; and
7. Increase in Stagecoach bus fares.

Owing to the time limit being reached for this item, questions on the following were to 
be responded to in writing:

Question eight was withdrawn prior to the meeting;
9. Sufficient secondary school places;
10. The pay for the Chief Executive of Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals Trust; 

and
11. Rubbish collection along the city’s roads.

A summary of all questions and answers raised within agenda item 11 are attached 
at APPENDIX A to these minutes. 

6



12. Motions on Notice

1.   Motion from Councillor Richard Ferris

That this Council notes the aspiration of the Council for Peterborough to become the 
Environment Capital of the UK, and resolves to:

(1)  ensure that all public realm works and infrastructure developments it undertakes  
or commissions are Carbon neutral; 

(2)  develop a sustainable transport strategy which puts health improvement at its 
heart; and 

(3)  embraces fully the 6 principles set out in its own 2006 Green Grid Strategy.

In moving his motion, Councillor Ferris advised that, going forward, it was vital that 
cities were designed appropriately for future needs. Cost effective alternatives needed 
to be explored and green infrastructure embraced, such as green walls and green 
roofs. More needed to be done in order to address the principles set out in the 
Council’s Green Grid Strategy. 

Councillor Shearman seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.

Members debated the motion and in summary raised points including:

 Concerns were expressed at the ability to ensure ‘all public realm works and 
infrastructure developments’ were carbon neutral. This would raise costs of 
development significantly and the authority would not be able to reclaim this 
from central government;

 Detailed consideration was given to impacts of all public realm works 
undertaken and where possible the schemes had positive environmental 
impact. It was difficult to deliver a scheme which was entirely carbon neutral;

 There was not sufficient understanding of the impacts of ‘entirely carbon 
neutral’ developments upon the city and therefore the motion needed more 
thought and further exploration needed to be undertaken into the points 
included and options available to the Council;

 Was there a defined target for carbon neutral and did this include waste 
disposal?

 The city should be aspiring to be carbon neutral within a sensible timeframe;
 The transport user hierarchy, contained within the Sustainable Transport 

Strategy, within the Local Transport Plan, was not being adhered to and 
implemented; and

 The management of available resources was missing within the Green Grid 
Strategy.

Councillor Shearman exercised his right to speak and advised that in order to become 
environment capital the city needed to do more. There were quick fixes, however the 
more difficult issues needed to be addressed for the long term. The city needed to be 
designed better and in turn this would encourage individuals to adopt healthier 
lifestyles.  

Councillor Ferris summed up as mover of the motion and advised that the changes 
outlined within the motion were possible and overall it was about the commitment to 
the aspiration to become environment capital. Many measures that could be 
implemented would save money in the medium to long term.

7



A vote was taken (19 for, 28 against, 4 abstentions) and the motion was DEFEATED. 

2.   Motion from Councillor Nick Thulbourn

That this Council notes that social housing was transferred to partners in 2003 and 
the strategy of the Council has not been reviewed since. 

I respectfully ask that this Council creates a cross party review of the present strategy 
and to consult and create a new fit for purpose strategy recommendation that reflects 
our changing city to enable a future proof and resilient strategy going forward.

The provision of social housing has changed significantly since 2003 and update of 
what social housing could and should be achieving, and delivering, is long overdue. 

In moving his motion Councillor Thulbourn advised that one of the common threads in 
the city was around housing. An overarching Strategy was required in relation to social 
housing and would enable the issues faced to be addressed and to look at alternative 
ways of delivering social housing. A review was required in order to identify the 
direction of travel in relation to the issue.

Councillor Jamil seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.

Members debated the motion and in summary raised points including:

 The Council’s Housing Team ran an effective service and their Strategy was 
constantly under review;

 With regards to housing associations making profit, i.e. by selling to the private 
sector, the profits went back into the sector;

 There had been issues with regards to the numbers of social houses;
 A working party was a good proposal, however individuals with knowledge of 

the issue should sit on the party and social landlords should also be invited to 
attend;

 Housing stock had been lost to housing associations and these houses could 
now be sold to their tenants. This was a concern and the Council should claw 
back the money put into these properties;

 There used to be an excellent housing system which was no longer in place;
 Selling houses to tenants meant that these houses were no longer available as 

social housing. A review was required;
 Was an additional working group required when there was due to be a five 

yearly review undertaken on the Housing Strategy?; and
 The number of people in social housing in the last ten years had remained the 

same however costs had quadrupled.

Councillor Jamil exercised his right to speak and advised that housing was important 
for all parties and it was important that a review of the Strategy be undertaken.

Councillor Thulbourn summed up as mover of the motion and advised that a change 
to the current Strategy was not sought, rather a holistic approach to the issue as a 
whole and an overarching approach to how social housing was run. The proposal to 
incorporate social landlords into the discussions was welcomed.

A vote was taken (48 for, 0 against, 3 abstentions) and the motion was CARRIED. 

8



13. Reports to Council

(a)       Local Government Pension Scheme Discretionary Policy

Council received a report from the Head of Human Resources which requested it to 
agree approve the revised copy of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
discretionary policy.

The recommendation was moved by Councillor Seaton who advised that there were 
two proposed changes to the scheme as outlined within the report. The 
recommendation was seconded by Elsey.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and it was RESOLVED:

That Council agrees the revised copy of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) discretionary policy.

(b)       Alternative Governance Arrangements

Council received a report from the Chair of the Alternative Governance Working Group 
which requested it to defer a decision regarding an alternative form of governance 
until the new civic year and to note that the preferred model was a hybrid model of 
executive decision making involving a greater deal of pre-scrutiny decision making.

The recommendation was moved by Councillor Sharp who advised that there had 
been a number of models explored however the working group had agreed on a 
bespoke model for Peterborough. The recommendation was seconded by Councillor 
Holdich.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and it was RESOLVED:

That Council:

(1) Agrees to defer a decision regarding an alternative form of governance until the 
new civic year; and

(2) Notes that the preferred model of alternative governance is a hybrid model of 
executive decision making with a greater involvement of pre-scrutiny decision 
making (a Peterborough model).

(c)       New Contract Regulations and Amendment to Contract Rules

Council received a report from the Director of Governance which requested that 
Council agree to amend the Constitution to include the revised Contract Rules 
following legislative changes.

The recommendation was moved by Councillor Seaton who advised that the changes 
were in line with changes to legislation and a larger review of the rules would take 
place later in the year. The recommendation was seconded by Councillor Casey.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and it was RESOLVED:

That Council amend the Constitution to include revised Contract Rules following 
legislative changes and that the Council approves the rules to ensure appropriate 
oversight in the exercise of that discretion.

9



(d)      Annual Report of the Audit Committee 
  

Council received a report from the Chair of the Audit Committee which requested it to 
note the work carried out by the Committee in improving the governance 
arrangements across the Council. The recommendation was moved by Councillor Lee 
who advised that the Committee had had a good year and thanks were extended to 
Members and Officers for their hard work and commitment. The recommendation was 
seconded by Councillor Harper.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and it was RESOLVED:

That Council notes the work carried out by the Audit Committee in improving the 
governance arrangements across the Council

(e)       Appointment of Chairman to the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital 
Scrutiny Committee

 
Council received a report which requested that it appoint Councillor Yasmeen 
Maqbool as Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee for the remainder of the municipal 
year 2015/16.

The recommendation was moved by Councillor Cereste and seconded by Councillor 
Serluca.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and it was RESOLVED:

That Council appoints Councillor Yasmeen Maqbool as Chairman of the Sustainable 
Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee for the remainder of the 
municipal year 2014/15.

(f)       Programme of Meetings 2015/16

Council received a report which requested it to approve the programme of meetings 
for 2015/16 and to approve, in principle, the draft programme of meetings for 2016/17.

The recommendation was moved by Councillor Rush and seconded by Councillor 
North.

Comments were made with regards to the lack of uniformity relating to Councillors 
receiving diary invites for Committee meetings. It was advised that this issue would 
be explored for the forthcoming municipal year.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and it was RESOLVED:

That Council approves the programme of meetings for 2015/16 and approves, in 
principle, the draft programme of meetings for 2016/17.

(g)       Variation to Standing Orders

Council received a report requesting that Council’s Standing Orders be varied and 
adopted, along with related protocols and schemes, and that the proposed variation 
be postponed without discussion to the next ordinary meeting of Council, in 
accordance with Standing Order 10 of the General Standing Orders. Councillor 
Seaton moved the recommendations in the report stating that the proposals were 
tabled and would be brought back to the next appropriate meeting for debate. 

10



Councillor Seaton further thanked the officers and the cross party working group for 
the work undertaken. 

This was seconded by Councillor Cereste and he endorsed the comments made by 
Councillor Seaton.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and it was RESOLVED to:

Postpone the proposed variation without discussion to the next ordinary meeting of 
council, in accordance with Standing Order 10 of the General Standing Orders.

The Mayor
7.00pm – 9.10pm

11



APPENDIX A

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS

Questions were received under the following categories:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There were no questions received. 

COUNCIL BUSINESS

11. Questions on notice to:

a) The Mayor
b) To the Leader or Member of the Cabinet
c) To the chair of any Committee or Sub-committee

1. Question from Councillor Davidson

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services

Can the Cabinet Member confirm if the Dukesmede Underpass could be considered 
for re-painting, with anti-graffiti paint in a lighter shade and if so, could this work be 
carried out before the end of the current year?

Councillor Hiller responded:

I can confirm that the underpass will be considered for re-painting and I have requested 
that should any funding remain available this financial year after our scheduled 
programme of structural repairs to subways and bridges then the Dukesmead subway 
will be painted with a lighter coloured anti-graffiti paint. 

Councillor Davidson did not have a supplementary question.

2. Question from Councillor Sharp

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services

I am currently and have been for some time deeply concerned about the one way 
system in Robert Avenue which is currently being abused, with many drivers now 
driving in both directions in this one way street.

Councillor Swift and I have raised this matter with highways on numerous occasions, 
the white lining on the road has been carried out on a couple of occasions, however 
this has not done much to deter road users from abusing this one way system.  

This current situation is a danger to the elderly population who reside in Robert Avenue 
who are now deeply concerned about crossing this road for fear of a car travelling in 

12



the wrong direction.

When vehicles travel the wrong way down this road it means they are coming out very 
close to the Fulbridge Loop and the majority are turning right to go into the loop, this is 
a dangerous junction to negotiate which is one of the reasons Robert Avenue was 
changed to one way originally.

If some enforcement measures are not carried out soon there is going to be a serious 
road accident takes place in Robert Avenue or at the junction with Fulbridge Road.

Could the Cabinet Member responsible please take a close look at how this one way 
system can be enforced or look at alternative ways to make sure this practice of 
travelling the wrong way in a one ways system stops.

Councillor Hiller responded:

This is clearly a very important issue and I have asked the Corporate Director of Growth 
and Regeneration to convene a meeting with senior highway officers and Councillors 
Sharp and Swift to help identify a permanent solution to the problem.

Councillor Sharp did not have a supplementary question.

3. Question from Councillor Ferris

To Councillor Cereste, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Growth, 
Strategic Planning and Business Engagement

Will the Leader tell this Chamber what development plans he has for the market, and 
how he intends to ensure that the views of both the general public and market traders 
will be taken into account?

Councillor Cereste responded:

The Peterborough market is a very old and enduring feature for the city, it is extremely 
important to the residents of Peterborough, and the Charter dates back before the 
present Cathedral. So it is, in my opinion an essential part of our community. We’ve 
got a current market recovery plan in place and we are in constant regular contact with 
the Market Traders Forum and with the market traders and nothing gets done without 
their involvement and them being consulted.

One of the things that is changing is the sort of product and produce that is wanted at 
markets and there is a big shift towards food, fresh fruit and vegetables and we are 
trying to encourage that on the market. 

Occupation rates are up about 6% which is very good and our rents, if you take 
inflation, are about 14% below the average in the UK so I would recommend the market 
to anybody, we are constantly reviewing how we can improve it and we are talking with 
the forum to see what can be done and how to do it best. I can assure Councillor Ferris 
that the market is in good hands.

Councillor Ferris did not have a supplementary question.

4. Question from Councillor Ash

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services

The scheme on Bourges Boulevard by Queensgate seems beset with delays, can the 
Cabinet Member give a firm indication when we can expect completion, the likely final 

13



cost of construction and the impact on the city caused by traffic queues and travel 
delays?

Councillor Hiller responded:

Let me firstly remind Members that the Bourges Boulevard improvement scheme is a 
central part of the regeneration of the city centre and Station Quarter to benefit not only 
us but generations to come. This hugely significant scheme is now and always was an 
integral element of the Council’s Local Transport Plan, adopted by this very Chamber. 
These improvements will help to reconnect the city centre with the station for visitors 
to Peterborough, for pedestrians and cyclists whilst at the same time fundamentally 
upgrading the appearance of this key route into the city, especially along the recently 
gentrified Cowgate to St Johns Square. Alongside this scheme we’ve seen the creation 
of a brand new cutting edge Waitrose store on what was derelict land, a highly energy 
efficient housing development on Midland Road transforming a dreadfully run down 
abandoned brownfield site and work is underway to regenerate the old hospital site 
providing many new homes of all types and a much needed new school. Plans for the 
long awaited regeneration of North Westgate have been announced and I’m pleased 
to say our planners are currently working with developers before the initial plans are 
submitted for appraisal. This Administration’s vision and commitment to improving the 
city centre assets is clearly acting as a major catalyst for private sector investment. 

A civil engineering exercise, the magnitude of Bourges Boulevard works, in a busy city 
centre was never going to happen overnight. The contractors have encountered 
engineering and ground works challenges, not least of which was the Anglian Water 
services replacement, massively underestimating the scale of their pipe work 
replacement programme and contractual issues with their own work force half way 
through.

We are scheduled to complete the works by the end of July this year. The construction 
cost overall will be £4m and the Council’s contribution is £1,285,725 – less than a third 
of the total - as we have successfully secured contributions of a £2.1m grant from the 
Local Enterprise Partnership and a S106 contribution of £614,275 from the Waitrose 
development.

Businesses in the city centre have been updated on progress on a weekly basis by the 
contractor’s liaison officer and we have received very little negative feedback from 
them. My impression from our dialogue is that they understand the wider benefits the 
scheme brings for the long term prosperity of the city and their viability thereafter. I 
would remind members of our exceptional road network around the city and traffic 
delays when they do occur are a big deal. Whilst of course there have been delays 
these are far less than most cities experience on a daily basis. 

Councillor Ash asked the following supplementary question:

I wouldn’t dispute the needs for a lot of the work and I agree too about people’s 
perception of the delays, however they are just not used to it. is the Cabinet Member 
not getting feedback from people in his ward in particular that they are concerned about 
the delays on Bourges Boulevard and they wonder why it is so expansive and knowing 
the problems with the water main it was advisable to put trees down the middle, instead 
perhaps reviewing a different position for them that wouldn’t have caused so much 
extra work.

Councillor Hiller responded:

Yes I do get commentary from residents and businesses that aren’t as supportive as 
perhaps some other businesses are, but I can assure this Chamber and Councillor Ash 

14



in particular that the supportive dialogue I have far out ways any negative commentary 
and regarding Anglian Water, if we hadn’t allowed them to do the works that they 
wanted to do when they wanted to, it would have probably meant that in 18 months or 
two years’ time the whole of the road network in that area would have had to have 
been ripped up for Anglian Water to have done that work anyway, so it was expedient 
to do the work at the time.

Regarding planting trees, they are completely self-contained, they will not interfere with 
any services underneath.

5. Question from Councillor Shearman

To Councillor Serluca, Cabinet Member for City Centre Management, Culture and 
Tourism

How will the Cabinet Member responsible for Culture ensure that we capture the impact 
of the changes in Library services on users, and the impact of cuts on the quality of 
and engagement with the arts and heritage services more generally in the city?

Councillor Serluca responded:

The Council’s consultation seeking people’s views on a new delivery model for library 
service closed on the 20Th March. The Council received 1847 responses.

Of these: 

 60% supported the proposal put forward; and 
 40% opposed it.

Therefore Cabinet has approved the new model. This is not to say the process has 
finished, we will be monitoring the progress of the new model every month for the first 
six months, and then we will move to our normal contracted four month review of 
Vivacity services, which included arts and heritage. 

I will also be monitoring the progress of the changes, as a Vivacity board member and 
through the Councils internal partnership meetings with Vivacity which take place one 
a month. 

I will of course keep all Councillors informed, as I have throughout the consultation, on 
the progress of the new library model and when it will be going live in your area. 

Councillor Shearman asked the following supplementary question:

Would you consider taking action if the results of the changes are not what you 
anticipated and would you have access to additional funds to put into practice that 
remedial action?

Councillor Serluca responded:

As I stated it will be a month on month review on how it is going, I would hope that the 
model we have put forward is the best that we can strive for. If something was not 
successful, then I would sit down with the officers that have helped throughout the 
process to see what can be done. All the work that has been brought forward and 
saving the libraries from closing, that thought hasn’t been in my mind, but I can 
personally guarantee you and everybody in this Chamber, regardless of what happens 
after May I will personally keep looking at this, monitoring and answering questions 
and sending out details to all. The libraries are an integral part to all communities and 

15



education.

6. Question from Councillor Murphy

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services

New research by the Royal National Institute of Blind People (RNIB) has highlighted 
the growing problem of street obstacles, dangerous street crossings and ‘shared 
space’ developments. 

Survey results published in RNIB's 'Who put that there' report 
(www.rnib.org.uk/onmystreet) revealed that a third of blind and partially sighted people 
across the UK had injured themselves when walking around their local areas. Overall, 
95% of people said that they had collided with an obstacle.

Challenges are also faced in the way local authorities communicate information 
affecting the street environment to blind and partially sighted residents, often this is not 
accessible resulting in people with sight loss having little chance to contribute.  

Will the Cabinet Member support the RNIB call for local authorities to develop 'street 
charters' with blind and partially sighted people and ensure a review of our policies in 
relation to the built environment is undertaken?

Councillor Hiller responded:

I would fully support this initiative. We already place great emphasis on ensuring that 
our public spaces are safe and accessible for all users, there is always more we can 
do. We work closely with DIAL Peterborough and involve them in scheme design. For 
example, both DIAL and the RNIB helped to shape the design of the public realm works 
in Long Causeway to ensure that it was safe and accessible for blind and partially 
sighted people. 

The Leader has been actively involved with the Guide Dogs for the Blind Association 
and last year carried out a blindfolded walk through the city centre to better understand 
the challenges that blind and partially sighted people face on a daily basis. 

We have a Walk Friendly Report which has reviewed a number of key pedestrian 
routes around the city and provides recommendations for improvements, which we are 
implementing year by year. Through our rolling capital programme of works we also 
allocate funding towards schemes such as dropped kerbs, mobility improvements and 
crossings and we are always happy to meet with any concerned individuals or groups.

I support Councillor Murphy’s call and will ask officers to look deeper into our planning 
policies for any improvement that we might be able to make.

Councillor Murphy asked the following supplementary question:

Will you bring an action plan to Council?

Councillor Hiller responded:

I haven’t considered that, but I will consider bringing an action plan to Council yes. 

7. Question from Councillor Sandford

To Councillor North, Cabinet Member for Communities and Environment Capital

16

http://www.rnib.org.uk/onmystreet


Could the relevant cabinet member give me his opinion on the recent increases in fares 
imposed by the Stagecoach bus company in Peterborough. Given that fuel prices have 
fallen significantly in recent months, what can be the justification for a significant 
increase in fares? Was the Council informed in advance about the increases and what 
representations did they make to Stagecoach about them?

Councillor North responded:

Stagecoach is a privately operated business which controls its own fare structure and 
timetable. The Council has no control over the setting of fares but was notified in 
advance of the proposed increase in fares. 

For example, the cost of a Peterborough Day Rider has increased by 2.5%, from £4 to 
£4.10 and the cost of a Weekly Peterborough Megarider by 3.7%, from £13.50 to £14. 
By comparison, some rail fares increased by up to 3.79% in January.

Stagecoach advise that fuel accounts for only 11% of their operating costs and like all 
major commercial fuel users they fix the price of their fuel well in advance to protect 
their customers and their business from the regular fluctuations in the price of oil. This 
is known as ‘hedging’. Stagecoach’s biggest cost is employee cost, which accounts for 
around two thirds of total operating costs. 

Councillor Sandford asked the following supplementary question:

Every time in the past when Stagecoach have put prices up they have always blamed 
the fuel costs so it seems odd now that the fuel costs are plummeting and they are 
putting prices up again. isn’t the problem that Stagecoach have a virtual monopoly on 
bus services in Peterborough and would the Cabinet Member take on board what the 
government is doing in relation to Greater Manchester, where the authority is going to 
be given powers to determine both the services that are provided in Greater 
Manchester and also the fares. Can he not argue with central government that we 
should be given those similar powers?

Councillor North responded:

As I reiterate, Stagecoach is a private company and any private company could come 
to Peterborough and compete on any of the routes offering a far lower cost if they were 
able to do so within their remit. There is nothing to stop another company coming to 
Peterborough if they feel there is money to be made. From experience and what I’ve 
seen, some of the routes are subsidised by the Council as are the evening services, 
I’m happy to keep a good eye on how the process works in Manchester to see if that 
would be a suitable model for Peterborough, but I can’t comment on that at this time. 

8. Question from Councillor Sylvester

The question from Councillor Sylvester was withdrawn.

9. Question from Councillor Ash

To Councillor Holdich, Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and University

A recent news report highlighted the need for more primary school places in 
Peterborough.  Noting that good secondary schools such as the former John Mansfield 
have been closed and most of the site has been approved for housing, can the Cabinet 
Member give assurances that there will be sufficient secondary school places, not only 

17



for those currently in primary schools but also for youngsters moving into the City?

Councillor Holdich may have responded:

We have successfully met the challenge of primary school places and we continue to 
invest in supporting our aspiration for local places for local children.  In 2002, we had 
over 2000 surplus secondary school spaces in crumbling buildings.  We now have a 
completely modernised secondary estate and it is only since 2009 have we seen an 
increase in numbers in secondary school after 7 years of decline.  We have been 
planning for this increased and actions we have taken include re-opening the former 
Hereward site as a free school and we have also recently had a successfully bid for a 
free school for Hampton Gardens.  These two schemes will create up to 2,100 new 
secondary school places for pupils aged 11 to 16.  We are currently working with 2 
secondary schools in the City to increase their intakes and I am confident we have 
sufficient places to meet the current demand but also allow for further migration to the 
City.  New developments in the city at Great Haddon and Norwood have proposals for 
new secondary provision.  We have to balance the cost of creating new school places 
against the risk of having empty schools in the future – I think we have played this well 
and met our aspiration for local places.  

10. Question from Councillor Sandford

To Councillor Cereste, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Growth, 
Strategic Planning and Business Engagement

According to the Times on Friday 3rd April,  a report by pay analysts  E-rewards.co.uk 
has shown that  over one fifth of top bosses in hospital trusts in England earn more 
each year than the Prime Minister.  The report states that “the interim chief executive 
of Peterborough and Stamford hospitals trust registered a sum of between £405,000 
and £410,000”.   

Would the cabinet member for health agree with me that such salaries are grossly 
excessive and what representations is he making to the hospitals trust to urge them to 
spend more money on patient care and less on senior officer salaries?

Councillor Cereste may have responded:

As members will be aware there are a number of factors that can influence the level of 
salary paid to any public servant.  As the Council is not aware of the many and various 
factors which went into the salary review of the chief executive for the Peterborough 
and Stamford hospital NHS trust, I do not consider it appropriate for the Council to 
comment. 

Expressions of opinion by the Council on matters of which it has limited knowledge 
ought to be avoided in my view. 

11. Question from Councillor Davidson

To Councillor Elsey, Cabinet Member for Street Scene and Waste Management

Could the Cabinet Member please confirm how often rubbish is collected from the city's 
road network? The A47 roundabout on Paston Parkway is becoming more like a tip 
and the road is thick with rubbish in between the central reservation. The amount of 
discarded rubbish which has been allowed to accumulate is substantial and is unsightly 
to all the road users. 

Councillor Elsey may have respond:

18



Residential roads and parkways, including this roundabout, are scheduled to be 
cleared of litter every four weeks. 

The last cleanse of this roundabout was undertaken 2 weeks ago.

The next cleanse is scheduled w/c 20th of April.  

The very busy nature of roads such as these mean there are additional traffic 
management requirements for health and safety reasons. 

Amey cannot cleanse on high speed roads without prior agreement for and co-
ordination of road closures from the Council’s Highways Department. 

If we have evidence that the accumulating litter originates from the Dogsthorpe Landfill 
site, we can and will instruct additional cleansing by the operators of that site. 

19



This page is intentionally left blank

20



ANNUAL COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 6

20 MAY 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Contact Officer(s): Gillian Beasley, Chief Executive and 
Returning Officer

Tel.  01733 452390

REPORT OF THE RETURNING OFFICER

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N
FROM : Returning Officer 

That Council receives and notes the results of the Local Elections held on Thursday 7 May, 2015 
(Appendix 1).

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 The results of the Local Elections for Peterborough City Council held on Thursday 7 May, 2015 
can be seen at Appendix 1 to this report.

21



This page is intentionally left blank

22



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Bretton North 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

CHANTER-ALLEN, Ann UK Independence Party (UKIP) 945  

HIRST, Wendy Christine Green Party 194  

MARTIN, Colin Stuart Labour Party 1422 Elected 

WARREN, Scott Edward The Conservative Party Candidate 1064  

WILSON, Rohan Cameron S Liberal Democrats 177  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 8 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 3 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  7 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 18 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 6848 Ballot Papers Issued: 3820 Turnout: 55.78% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Colin Stuart Martin is duly elected Councillor for Bretton North ward. 
.
 

23

aag644
Text Box
APPENDIX 1



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Bretton South 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

COLES, Andrew W J The Conservative Party Candidate 601 Elected 

ELLIS, Angus Alexander Labour Party 413  

FLETCHER, Michael Independent 240  

GIBBONS, Samuel Francis Green Party 67  

POLLACK, Malcolm Liberal Democrats 71  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 16 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 2 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  5 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 23 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 2314 Ballot Papers Issued: 1415 Turnout: 61.15% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Andrew W J Coles is duly elected Councillor for Bretton South ward. 
.
 

24



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Central 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

AIREY, Alexander North Green Party 383  

NADEEM, Mohammed The Conservative Party Candidate 2294 Elected 

YASIN, Sabra Labour Party 1856  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 0 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 21 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 2 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  31 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 54 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 7780 Ballot Papers Issued: 4587 Turnout: 58.96% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Mohammed Nadeem is duly elected Councillor for Central ward. 
.
 

25



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Dogsthorpe 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

FISHER, Emily Kate The Conservative Party Candidate 460  

O`DELL, Peter UK Independence Party (UKIP) 649  

ODEP, Haggai Odhiambo Labour Party 898  

SALTMARSH, Christabel Margaret The Liberal Party 1303 Elected 

SENIOR, Nicholas John Green Party 83  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 6 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 4 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  4 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 14 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 6709 Ballot Papers Issued: 3408 Turnout: 50.80% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Christabel Margaret Saltmarsh is duly elected Councillor for 
Dogsthorpe ward. 

.
 

26



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

East 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

ALEXANDER, Michael Green Party 236  

COLLINS, Adam Eric The Conservative Party Candidate 1135  

HERDMAN, Mary UK Independence Party (UKIP) 762  

RINGLER, Sandra The Liberal Party 143  

SHABBIR, Nabil Ahmed Labour Party 1622 Elected 
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 22 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 12 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 2 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  4 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 40 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 7856 Ballot Papers Issued: 3942 Turnout: 50.18% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Nabil Ahmed Shabbir is duly elected Councillor for East ward. 
.
 

27



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Fletton & Woodston 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

DOWSON, Alan Grant Labour Party 1437  

FAUSTINO, Rui Pedro Rodrigues The Conservative Party Candidate 1798 Elected 

LLOYD, Jonathan Ronald 
Trade Unionists and Socialists Against 
Cuts 

131  

OBRADOVIC, Dusan Independent 673  

TENNANT, Ian Peter Green Party 511  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 0 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 7 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  41 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 48 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 8451 Ballot Papers Issued: 4598 Turnout: 54.41% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Rui Pedro Rodrigues Faustino is duly elected Councillor for Fletton & 
Woodston ward. 

.
 

28



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

North 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

GARTSIDE, Harry James The Conservative Party Candidate 303  

SWIFT, Charles William Independent 1047 Elected 

WILSON, Stephanie Julia Green Party 141  

YONGA, Bonita Rosalind Labour Party 590  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 10 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 3 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  0 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 13 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 3999 Ballot Papers Issued: 2094 Turnout: 52.36% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Charles William Swift is duly elected Councillor for North ward. 
.
 

29



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Northborough 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

HILLER, Peter John The Conservative Party Candidate 1140 Elected 

PALMER, Terence Colin UK Independence Party (UKIP) 368  

WILKINSON, Sarah Caroline M Green Party 179  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 0 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 0 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  16 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 16 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 2224 Ballot Papers Issued: 1703 Turnout: 76.57% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Peter John Hiller is duly elected Councillor for Northborough ward. 
.
 

30



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Orton Longueville 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

CASEY, Graham Peter The Conservative Party Candidate 1398 Elected 

DEXTER, Rupert UK Independence Party (UKIP) 1128  

HORTON, Richard Andrew Green Party 234  

SIDLAUSKIENE, Evelina Labour Party 1122  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 0 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 4 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  15 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 19 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 7366 Ballot Papers Issued: 3901 Turnout: 52.96% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Graham Peter Casey is duly elected Councillor for Orton Longueville 
ward. 

.
 

31



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Orton Waterville 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

AITKEN, Kim Lesley The Conservative Party Candidate 2532 Elected 

HONEYMAN-SMITH, Colin George Green Party 319  

MCLAUGHLAN, Iain Peter UK Independence Party (UKIP) 924  

WEAVER, David Stanley Labour Party 874  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 0 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 1 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  22 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 23 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 6775 Ballot Papers Issued: 4675 Turnout: 69.00% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Kim Lesley Aitken is duly elected Councillor for Orton Waterville 
ward. 

.
 

32



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Orton with Hampton 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

BISBY-BOYD, Darren Charles Green Party 498  

BLISZCZAK, Matthew Jon UK Independence Party (UKIP) 1047  

JOHNSON, Susan Mary Labour Party 1328  

NORTH, Nigel Victor The Conservative Party Candidate 2476 Elected 

WIGGIN, Christopher James Liberal Democrat Focus Team 498  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 0 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 3 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  12 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 15 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 10139 Ballot Papers Issued: 5862 Turnout: 57.82% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Nigel Victor North is duly elected Councillor for Orton with Hampton. 
.
 

33



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Park 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

ALLEN, Stephen Paul The Conservative Party Candidate 1438  

RADIC, Fiona Jane Green Party 172  

SELLICK, Rebeka L Liberal Democrats 90  

SHEARMAN, John Francis Labour Party 2049 Elected 

WHITEHEAD, Graham John UK Independence Party (UKIP) 326  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 8 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 6 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  0 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 14 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 7033 Ballot Papers Issued: 4095 Turnout: 58.23% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, John Francis Shearman is duly elected Councillor for Park ward. 
.
 

34



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Paston 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

CHIVALL, Peter Bernard Liberal Democrats 171  

HOPOGAP YONGA, Jonas Ambroise Labour Party 1116 Elected 

PROUDFOOT, Roger Kenneth Green Party 151  

TYLER, Bryan Andrew The Conservative Party Candidate 1037  

VARKALIS, Sharon UK Independence Party (UKIP) 842  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 9 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 3 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  2 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 14 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 6156 Ballot Papers Issued: 3331 Turnout: 54.11% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Jonas Ambroise Hopogap Yonga is duly elected Councillor for 
Paston ward. 

.
 

35



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Ravensthorpe 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

MURPHY, Edward Labour and Co-Operative Party 1207 Elected 

NEVILLE, David UK Independence Party (UKIP) 496  

NEWTON, Harry The Conservative Party Candidate 813  

WEEDON, Joanna Susan Green Party 87  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 9 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 0 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  3 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 12 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 5243 Ballot Papers Issued: 2616 Turnout: 49.90% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Edward Murphy is duly elected Councillor for Ravensthorpe ward. 
.
 

36



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of City Councillors for 
 

Stanground Central 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

BISBY, Raymond The Conservative Party Candidate 1731 Elected 

CAPP, Nicholas Peter 
English Democrats - "Putting England 
First!" 

324  

CERESTE, Marco The Conservative Party Candidate 1418  

PHILLIPSON BROWN, Jonathan F Green Party 376  

THULBOURN, Margaret Labour Party 1273  

WHITBY, John WIlliam S UK Independence Party (UKIP) 1560 Elected 

YORK, Christopher Robert Labour Party 1031  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 
ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 0 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 4 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  14 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 18 
 

Vacant Seats: 2 Electorate: 8078 Ballot Papers Issued: 4670 Turnout: 57.81% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Raymond Bisby and John WIlliam S Whitby are duly elected 
Councillor for Stanground Central ward. 

.
 

37



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Stanground East 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

FIDDY, Ruth Anne Green Party 136  

HARPER, Christopher John The Conservative Party Candidate 775 Elected 

THULBOURN, John Nicholas Labour Party 403  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 0 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 0 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  15 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 15 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 2289 Ballot Papers Issued: 1329 Turnout: 58.06% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Christopher John Harper is duly elected Councillor for Stanground 
East ward. 

.
 

38



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Werrington North 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

BEEBY, Cherry May Green Party 209  

FOX, Judith Ann Independent 1988 Elected 

JONES, Christopher Labour Party 632  

MORLEY, Darren The Conservative Party Candidate 942  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 22 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 0 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  3 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 25 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 5840 Ballot Papers Issued: 3794 Turnout: 64.97% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Judith Ann Fox is duly elected Councillor for Werrington North ward. 
.
 

39



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

Werrington South 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

BOND, Andrew William Frederick Liberal Democrat Focus Team 1133  

KENNEDY, Michael UK Independence Party (UKIP) 669  

MOON, Vincent Stanley Labour and Co-Operative Party 521  

THACKER, Paula Vivien The Conservative Party Candidate 1562 Elected 

WELLS, Joseph Hamylton Green Party 107  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 7 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 2 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  1 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 10 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 5380 Ballot Papers Issued: 4010 Turnout: 74.54% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Paula Vivien Thacker is duly elected Councillor for Werrington South 
ward. 

.
 

40



Dated Tuesday 12 May 2015 Gillian Beasley 
 

 
Returning Officer 

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF 

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL 
 

Peterborough 
 

Election of a City Councillor for 
 

West 
on Thursday 7 May 2015 

 
I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Candidate 

Description 
(if any) 

Number of 
Votes* 

FITZGERALD, Wayne The Conservative Party Candidate 2312 Elected 

LAWRENCE, Karen Green Party 418  

MYLES, John Whitson UK Independence Party (UKIP) 755  

SABIR, Mohammed Labour Party 1619  
* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes. 
 

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: 
Number of 

ballot papers 

A want of an official mark 8 

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 3 

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0 

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty  5 

E rejected in part 0 

Total 16 
 

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 7014 Ballot Papers Issued: 5129 Turnout: 73.13% 
 

And I do hereby declare that, Wayne Fitzgerald is duly elected Councillor for West ward. 
.
 

41



This page is intentionally left blank

42



ANNUAL COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM. 7

20 MAY 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Contact Officer(s): Kim Sawyer, Director of Governance  Tel. 01733 452361

POLITICAL GROUPS AND GROUP OFFICERS 2015 / 2016

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N 

FROM:  Director of Governance

That Council notes the membership of political groups (Appendix 1 – document to be tabled) and 
their officers (Appendix 2 – document to be tabled) for 2015 / 2016.

1. BACKGROUND 

1.1 The details of the composition of political groups can be seen at Appendix 1 (document to be 
tabled) to this report. 

1.2 The details of Group Officers can be seen at Appendix 2 (document to be tabled) to this report.

 

43



This page is intentionally left blank

44



             

ANNUAL COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 8

20 MAY 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Contact Officer(s): Kim Sawyer, Director of Governance Tel: 01733 452361

APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE AND LEADER’S SCHEME OF DELEGATION

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S

FROM :  Director of Governance 

That Council:

(a) Elects a Leader of the Council for a period of four years; and

(b) Notes the appointment of the Cabinet and the Leader’s Scheme of Delegation to Cabinet 
Members and officers (Appendix 1 - document to be tabled); and

(c) Agrees to amend the Constitution to include the Leader’s Scheme of Delegation to Cabinet 
Members and officers. 

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

1.1 In accordance with the Constitution, Full Council can appoint the Leader of the Council.  All 
Executive functions are delegated to the Leader who may then delegate further to the Cabinet, 
Committees of the Cabinet, Cabinet Members and Officers.

1.2 Council is responsible for amending the Constitution to include the Leader’s Scheme of 
Delegation.

2. LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

2.1 At its meeting in October 2010 Council adopted the Leader and Cabinet executive model.  This 
took effect from May 2011.  Therefore, from May 2011 and every 4th year thereafter, at its Annual 
Meeting, Council will elect the Leader of the Council.  

2.2 This being the fourth year, 2015, a Leader is to be elected at the Annual Council meeting.

2.3   The Leader must be elected for a period of four years. 

3. DELEGATION TO CABINET MEMBERS

3.1 The Leader must appoint a Deputy Leader and up to eight other members to form the Executive.  
Peterborough City Council uses the term Cabinet to describe its Executive.

3.2 The Leader is only required to confirm the appointment of the Cabinet and delegations of his 
executive functions to Cabinet, any Cabinet committees, including any Cabinet Members and 
officers, to the Council meeting. These will be tabled at the meeting.

45



             
4. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

4.1 Peterborough City Council’s Constitution.

46



ANNUAL COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 9

20 MAY 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

COMMITTEE STRUCTURES, DELEGATIONS AND ALLOCATIONS

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM : Director of Governance

It is recommended that:

(a) The Council agrees the Committee structure:

(i) as set out at paragraph 3.1 of the report; and

(ii) that the terms of reference of those committees and the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegations remain as currently set out in the Constitution, subject to any changes 
tabled at the meeting. 

(b) Council notes the programme of meeting schedules as attached at Appendix 1 to this 
report;

(c) Subject to confirmation of the political group arrangements, the Council considers 
exempting the Audit Committee and the Planning Review Committee from the political 
balance seat arrangements;

(d) The allocation of seats on Committees of the Council, subject to political balance  seat 
arrangements be agreed (Appendix 2 - document to be tabled); and

(e) The allocation of seats on Committees to be appointed to by the Council, not subject to 
political balance seat arrangements (paragraph 6), be agreed (Appendix 3 - document to 
be tabled).

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

1.1 To review and approve the structure of committees of the Council and the allocation of seats on 
committees in accordance with the statutory requirements concerning political balance and to 
approve the appointment of members (and substitutes) to serve on committees for 2015/2016.

2. BACKGROUND - COMMITTEES

2.1 The Council must appoint at least one overview and scrutiny committee and such other 
committees as it considers appropriate to deal with the matters which are neither reserved to the 
Full Council nor are executive (Leader and Cabinet) functions.

2.2 A review of committees, their terms of reference and the schemes of delegation for committees is 
intended to be conducted over the coming months. The current committees and their terms of 
reference are proposed to remain unchanged in the interim.

2.3 Full Council may wish to consider the size of each of the committees in the light of electoral 
changes, but the membership set out below is as per that established in 2013/2014.

47



3. COMMITTEE STRUCTURE

3.1 The committee structure recommended for 2015 / 2016 is shown below:

Committee Seats

Ordinary Committees subject to political balance seat allocations:

Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities
Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues
Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee
Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny Committee
Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee
Employment Committee 
Licensing Committee (Regulatory)
Planning and Environmental Protection Committee
Appeals Committee (Service Issues)

Committees proposed to be exempted from the political balance seat allocations

Audit Committee
Planning Review Committee

Other bodies to which Section 15 LGHA does not apply

Health and Wellbeing Board
Licensing Committee (Licensing Act 2003)

Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel 
Fire Authority 

  
7

  7
  7
  7
  7
  7
10
10
10

7
10

5
10

3
4 

4. BACKGROUND - ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS 

4.1 Under Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government 
(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations, the city council has a duty to review the 
representation of different political groups at its annual meeting in respect of bodies to which the 
section applies (for example the section applies to the Council’s ordinary committees). The 
section does not apply to the statutory Licensing Committee or Health and Wellbeing Board and 
so the political balance rules are not applied to these. 

4.2 Section 15 of the Act provides that, in performing this duty, the Council has a duty to make only 
such determinations as give effect so far as reasonably practicable to the following principles:
(a) that not all the seats on the body are allocated to the same political group;
(b) that the majority of the seats on the body are allocated to a particular political group if the 

number of persons belonging to that group is a majority of the authority’s membership;
(c) subject to paragraphs (a) and (b) above, that the number of seats on the ordinary 

committees of a relevant authority which are allocated to each political group bears the 
same proportion to the total of all the seats on the ordinary committees of the authority as 
is borne by the number of members of that group to the membership of the authority; and

(d) subject to (a) to (c) above, that the number of seats on the body which are allocated to 
each political group bears the same proportion to the number of all the seats on that body 
as is borne by the number of members of that group to the membership of the authority.

48



4.3 For the purpose of calculating the entitlement of each political group to seats on committees, it is 
proposed that the following be included:

Committee Seats
Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities
Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues
Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee
Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny Committee
Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee
Employment Committee 
Audit Committee
Licensing Committee (Regulatory)
Planning and Environmental Protection Committee
Planning Review Committee
Appeals Committee (Service Issues)

7
  7
  7
  7
  7
  7

7
10
10
10
10 

TOTAL 89

5. REMOVING COMMITTEES FROM POLITICAL BALANCE ARRANGEMENTS

5.1 In previous years, Audit Committee and the Planning Review Committee have been exempted 
from political balance seat arrangements. This is to allow at least one seat on each of those 
committees to be appointed to by the smallest groups. This ensures that there is complete 
political representation when Members may be hearing complaints under the Code of Conduct or 
when decisions of the Planning Committee are called in to Council.

5.2 In order to exempt these committees from political balance seat arrangements no Councillor can 
vote against the recommendation. This would reduce the number of seats subject to political 
balance requirements to 72, as detailed in the table below.

Committee Seats
Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities
Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues
Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee
Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny Committee
Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee
Employment Committee 
Licensing Committee (Regulatory)
Planning and Environmental Protection Committee
Appeals Committee (Service Issues)

7
  7
  7
  7
  7
  7
10
10
10 

TOTAL 72

5.3 Subject to Council appointing the committees and agreeing the sizes of committees described 
above, the total number of seats on committees available this year is proposed to be 89 or 72. 
Separate allocations will be tabled at the meeting and will be dependent on the outcome of the 
Council’s decision to exempt. 

5.4 A Group’s seats on a Committee will be allocated automatically in terms of whole numbers. The 
remainder will need to be shared out proportionately across the committees to ensure that the 
third principle (paragraph 4.2(c) above) is applied. The fourth principle is then applied to ensure 
that the seats then allocated are not unfairly weighted.

49



5.5 Discussions are taking place with and between the political whips with the intention to produce a 
fair distribution of the seats according to a Group’s wishes. This will result in either an agreement 
to be proposed at the meeting or, failing that, a proposal to be debated and determined at the full 
Council meeting. 

 
5.6 The agreed totals must then, as far as is reasonably practicable, reflect the aggregate entitlement 

of the political groups to committee seats. Council will therefore note the difference between this, 
their entitlement, and the actual distribution of seats their decision gives each political group.

6. APPOINTMENTS EXEMPTED FROM POLITICAL BALANCE

6.1 The Licensing Committee (Licensing Act 2003): The City Council has a Licensing Committee, 
which is a separate statutory committee pursuant to Section 6 of the Licensing Act 2003.  By law 
the committee must comprise no more than 15 and no less than 10 members. The Committee 
currently comprises of 10 members of the authority and are the same members as are appointed 
under the political balance rules to the Licensing Committee (Regulatory), which is an ordinary 
committee.

6.2 The Health and Wellbeing Board: The membership of the Health and Well Being Board is 
prescribed in section 194 of the 2012 Act. Whilst it is an ‘ordinary committee’, the legislation has 
removed the political balance requirements of this committee because this is seen as an 
executive arm of the Council as well as it being required to include voting members from other 
bodies and, a first for local government, officers of the Council. The 5 elected Members on the 
Board are to be as determined by the Board’s Terms of Reference.

6.3 Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel (3 members – as determined by the political make-up 
across the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Authority Areas when taken together) – 
established by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. There are 13 seats on the 
Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel.  

6.4 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority: There are 17 seats on the Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough Fire Authority, 4 of which are allocated to Peterborough City Council 
representatives and 13 of which are allocated to Cambridgeshire County Council representatives.  
The seats are allocated on a proportionate basis. 

7. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985)

6.1 Peterborough City Council’s Constitution.

50



MEETING TIME

JUNE JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY

COUNCIL (Wednesday) 7pm 15 14 9 27 9 20

Annual Council (Monday) 6.30pm 23

Cabinet (Monday) 10am 15 27 21 9 14 18 8 & 29 21 25

SCRUTINY COMMITTEES/COMMISSIONS

Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities 7pm 16 13 7 3 11 7

Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues 7pm 24 21 17 5 13 15

Creating Opportunities & Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny Committee 7pm 15 20 14 16 18 14

Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee 7pm 10 16 10 12 25 23

Strong & Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee 7pm 11 22 16 24 20 10

Scrutiny of the Budget 7pm 10

COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

Appeals Committee (Monday) 7pm 11

Audit Committee (Monday) 7pm 29 21 9 8 21

Planning & Env. Protection Committee (PEP) (Tuesday) 1.30pm 9 7 8 13 10 8 12 9 8 12

PEP provisional dates (Tuesday) 23 28 15 27 24 22 26 23 22 26

Licensing  & Licensing Act 2003 Committee (Thurs) 7pm 18 16 3 15 19 17 14 11 17 21

Employment Committee (Thursday) 3pm 25 17 26 21 17

Health and Wellbeing Board (Thursday) 1pm 18 10 10 24

OTHER BODIES

Combined Fire Authority Various 8 11 19

Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel 2.00pm 17 16 4 3 16

Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO)

PARTNERSHIP AND LIAISON MEETINGS

Safer Peterborough Partnership 3pm - 5pm 24 29 23 28 25 13 24 30 27 25

Parish Council Liaison (Wednesday) (T.B.C.) 6.30pm 8 9 16 16

Children and Families Joint Commissioning Board 1.30pm 10 28 7

Corporate Parenting Panel 6.30pm 1 2 21 2 21 23

CONFERENCES

Conservative Party 4-7 Oct

Labour Party Annual Conference 27-30 Sept

Liberal Democrats 19-23 Sept

UKIP

Local Government Association 30 June to 02-Jul

APPENDIX 1PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATES JUNE 2015 - MAY 2016

51



Bank Holidays 2015 - 2016 Summer Term 2015 Spring Term 2016

25 May 2015 - Spring Bank Holiday  Opens 14 April Opens Tuesday 5 January 

31 August 2015 - Summer Bank Holiday May Day Monday 4 May Half Term 15 to 19 February

25 December 2015 - Christmas Day Half Term 25 to 29 May Ends Wednesday 23 March

26 December 2015 - Boxing Day Ends Friday 17 July Summer Term 2016

28 December 2015 Bank Holiday Substitue day (for Boxing Day) Autumn Term 2015 Opens Tuesday 12 April

1 January 2016 - New Year's Day Opens Monday 7 September Mayday Monday 2 May

25 March  2016 - Good Friday Half Term 26 October to 30 October Half Term 30 May to 3 June

28 March 2016 - Easter Monday Ends Friday 18 December Ends Friday 22 July

2 May 2016 - Early May Bank Holiday 

 30 May 2016 - Spring Bank Holiday

NB:  dates in italics are 

additional, provisional dates 

for any urgent business and 

may be cancelled

52



MEETING TIME

JUNE JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY

COUNCIL (Wednesday) 7pm 13 12 7 25 8 17

Annual Council (Monday) 6.30pm 24

Cabinet (Monday) 10am 13 25 26 28 19 16 6+20 27 24

SCRUTINY COMMITTEES/COMMISSIONS

Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities 7pm 13 11 5 7 9 20

Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues 7pm 22 19 20 15 10 14

Creating Opportunities & Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny Committee 7pm 20 18 12 14 5 13

Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee 7pm 16 14 10 10 19 23

Strong & Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee 7pm 8 20 14 23 11 8

Scrutiny of the Budget 7pm 10

COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

Appeals Committee (Monday) 7pm 10

Audit Committee (Monday) 7pm 29 26 7 13 27

Planning & Env. Protection Committee (PEP) (Tuesday) 1.30pm 7 5 12 11 8 6 10 7 7 11

PEP provisional dates (Tuesday) 21 26 26 25 22 20 24 21 21 25

Licensing  & Licensing Act 2003 Committee (Thurs) 7pm 9 7 15 13 17 8 12 9 16 20

Employment Committee (Thursday) 3pm 23 15 24 19 16

Health and Wellbeing Board (Thursday) 1pm 16 22 22 23

OTHER BODIES

Combined Fire Authority Various

Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel (Wed) 2.00pm 29

Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO)

PARTNERSHIP AND LIAISON MEETINGS

Safer Peterborough Partnership 3pm - 5pm 15 13 24 21 26 16 18 22 29 26 31

Parish Council Liaison (Wednesday) (T.B.C.) 6.30pm 6 7 14 15

Children and Families Joint Commissioning Board 1.30pm 

Corporate Parenting Group 6.30pm 15 6 7 16 18 22

WORKING GROUPS

All Party Policy 6pm 16 21 22 20 24 15 26 16 30 18

Cabinet Policy Forum 5.30pm 14 + 28 12 + 26 13 + 27 11 + 25 8 + 22 13 10 + 24 14 + 28 14 + 28 11 + 25

Member Officer Working Group 5.45pm

CONFERENCES

Conservative Party

Labour Party Annual Conference

Liberal Democrats

Local Government Association

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATES JUNE 2016 - MAY 2017

53



Bank Holidays 2016 - 2017 Summer Term 2016 Spring Term 2017

30 May 2016 - Spring Bank Holiday  Opens 12 April Opens Wednesday 4 January 

29 August 2016 - Summer Bank Holiday May Day Monday 2 May Half Term 20 to 24 February

25 December 2016 - Christmas Day Half Term 30 May to 3 June Ends Friday 7 April

26 December 2016 - Boxing Day Ends Friday 22 July Summer Term 2017

27 December 2016 Bank Holiday Substitue day (for Boxing Day) Autumn Term 2016 Opens Wednesday 26 April

1 January 2017 - New Year's Day Opens Wednesday 7 September May Day Monday 1 May

 2 January 2017 - Bank Holiday Substitue day (for New Year's Day) Half Term 24 to 28 October Half Term 29 May to 2 June

14 April 2017 - Good Friday Ends Wednesday 21 December Ends Thursday 20 July

17 April 2017 - Easter Monday

1 May 2017 - Early May Bank Holiday 

 29 May 2017 - Spring Bank Holiday

NB:  dates in italics are 

additional, provisional dates 

for any urgent business and 

may be cancelled

54



ANNUAL COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 10

20 MAY 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES AND OTHER BODIES

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM : Director of Governance

It is recommended that:

(a) Where the allocation to different political groups of the seats on committees and other bodies 
has been determined under Agenda Item 10, that Council

(i) make appointments to those Committees so as to give effect to the wishes about who is 
to be appointed to the seats on each Committee which are allocated to a particular 
political group as are expressed by that group (Appendix 1 - document to be tabled);

(ii) in respect of any appointments to be made other than under (a) above, appoints the 
Monitoring Officer as Proper Officer to be authorised to carry out the wishes of the 
Leaders of the Political Groups in allocating members to each Committee; and

(iii) appoints those Members with effect from the date at which the Proper Officer is advised of 
the names of such Members;

(b) The Chair and Vice-Chair of each of the Council’s Committees be appointed (Appendix 1 – 
document to be tabled); and

(c) The membership of elected and non-elected members of committees, as described at 
paragraphs 4.1 to 4.6, be confirmed

(d) To confirm the appointment to outside organisations.

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

1.1 In accordance with the constitution, full Council must appoint the members and to the Chair and 
Vice-Chair of non-executive Committees. 

2. BACKGROUND

2.1  The Council must decide which Councillors to appoint as the Chair and Vice-Chair of its 
Committees at its annual meeting. 

2.3 The Council must also note which Councillors should be appointed to which of its Committees at 
its annual meeting. 

2.4 Other member appointments are to be made as allocated to political groups and as described in 
the report to item number 9 of this meeting’s agenda.  

55



3. APPOINTMENTS

3.1 The wishes of a particular political group(s) are to be expressed at the meeting.

4. NON COUNCILLOR COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

4.1 The Council is required under the Parent Governor Representative (England) Regulations 2001 
to appoint parent governor representatives to any scrutiny committee which considers education 
issues.  Schedule 1 (paragraph 7) of the Local Government Act 2000 similarly requires that the 
Church of England and Roman Catholic churches may each nominate a co-opted member with 
voting rights and the Council may appoint other faith representatives without voting rights. (The 
voting rights of the faith and parent governor representatives only apply when the Scrutiny 
Committee is considering educational matters; for other issues the co-opted members may 
participate in the debate but not vote).

4.2 Within the structure, education matters are discussed at the Creating Opportunities and Tackling 
Inequalities Scrutiny Committee.  All of the education co-opted members need to be formal 
members of this Committee, with voting rights for education matters. 

4.3 The education co-opted members for the year will be:

Miranda Robinson, Peterborough Diocesan Board of Education;
Paul Rossi, Roman Catholic Church, Diocese of East Anglia;
Peter Thompson, Parent Governor Representative;
Vacancy, Parent Governor Representative;
Tricia Pritchard, Diocese of Ely;
Julie O’Connor, Roman Catholic Diocese of East Anglia (sub for Paul Rossi).
Alistair Kingsley, Independent Co-opted Member
Vacancy - Non-voting Muslim representative

4.4 The Council is required under the Localism Act 2011 to appoint at least one independent person 
of the Council. The role of the Independent Person is to oversee the process for dealing with 
allegations that a member has breached the Member’s Code of Conduct. 

4.5 The Independent Person for the year will be:

Gillian Holmes, Independent Person of the Council

4.6 The Health and Wellbeing Board has appointed to it certain post holders under the Board’s terms 
of reference. In addition the Audit Committee has appointed Independent Persons. These 
appointments are either subject to statutory regulation or are delegated under the Council’s 
Constitution to the Committee concerned.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

There are no background papers used to prepare this report that are not otherwise published.

 

56



ANNUAL COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 11

20 MAY 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Contact Officer: Kim Sawyer, Director of Governance Tel: 01733 452361

STANDING ORDERS

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S

FROM : Members Officer Working Group, Chairman Councillor Seaton

It is recommended that:
 
1. Standing Orders are varied in that Council:

(a) revoke the following Standing Orders as set out in the Constitution at:
(i)  Part 4, Section 1 of the Council’s Constitution 

- The Council’s Standing Orders.

(b) adopt each of the variations to the Council Standing Orders set out at Appendix 1 
and

(c)   adopt the related protocols/schemes as follows:

i. The Selection of Mayor Protocol, as amended, attached at Appendix 2; and
ii. The Petition Scheme attached at Appendix 3.

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

1.1 At the last meeting of Council on 15 April 2015, the Standing Orders were referred to 
Council for adoption. Those Standing Orders were postponed without discussion until the 
next meeting in accordance with Standing Order 10 of the General Standing Orders.

1.2 The Member Officer Working Group (MOWG) has taken on the role of considering 
proposed Constitutional Changes following the merging of the Member’s Working Board 
and the Constitution Review Group.

1.3 The report details the main changes to the Standing Orders as proposed by the Group, 
along with others as proposed by Democratic Services following the utilisation of the 
previous revisions for almost a year.

57



1.4 The report further outlines additional protocols/schemes arising out of the review of  
standing orders by the Member Officer Working Group. It is requested that Council 
approve and adopt these documents alongside the Standing Orders.

2.        BACKGROUND 

2.1      The Council’s Standing Orders were revised and adopted by Council on 16 April 2014 
and it was agreed that following six months of implementation, the Orders would be 
revisited in order to ascertain whether they were fit for purpose. 

2.2 Throughout the course of the year, a number of issues have arisen and been 
highlighted by Members these being:

i. The process for appointment of Chairman / Vice Chairman in year;
ii. The length of time for budget speeches; and
iii. The length of time for questions on notice and the number of questions.

2.3 These individual points have been discussed at the Member Officer Working Group and 
the Standing Orders updated to reflect the necessary revisions. 

2.4 Throughout the course of the year, general day to day working within Democratic 
Services has also highlighted a number of areas where new Standing Orders didn’t offer 
sufficient clarity.

2.5 The Standing Orders have been updated to reflect the re-addition of some previously 
rescinded Standing Orders, all changes are highlighted in yellow within the Orders at 
Appendix 1. 

2.6 Members are requested to consider and agree the revisions.

3. SELECTION OF MAYOR PROCESS

3.1 At the Council meeting held on 23 July 2014, a motion was put forward by Councillor 
Julia Davidson which requested exploration be undertaken into alternative ways of 
nominating the Mayor in future years.

3.2 A number of options were explored and a paper presented to the Member Officer 
Working Group for consideration. Following cross party debate, a scheme of nomination 
by order of seniority was considered to be the most fair and practical way of nominating a 
Mayor Elect. A scheme is attached at Appendix 2 for Council to consider and approve for 
inclusion with the Constitution at Part 5 Section 8.

3.3 Following a Group Leader’s meeting, amendments to the draft protocol are proposed in 
relation to the appointment of the Mayor, this being that the Member will be eligible for 
the role of the Mayor ‘provided that they have not previously served as Mayor’. 

3.4 A further amendment is proposed in relation to the Deputy Mayor, this being that the 
Deputy Mayor will also be appointed by order of seniority. 

3.5 As the Selection of Mayor Process is a protocol and not a standing order, the 
amendments can be debated and accepted at the meeting.

58



4. PETITIONS SCHEME

4.1 The Council has been operating without a formal petition scheme for some considerable 
time. The Petition Scheme was last presented to Council in October 2014 and all aspects 
of the Scheme were considered acceptable bar the levels of signature required to incite 
debate at Cabinet and Council. The Member Officer Working Group was tasked with 
revisiting the levels and proposing alternatives as considered appropriate.

4.2 Following a number of cross party debates within the Group, it was agreed that the levels 
would be 50 signatures to incite debate at Cabinet and 500 to incite debate at Council.

4.3 These levels are for Council to discuss and consider. Once this aspect of the Scheme 
has been agreed, the new Scheme can be implemented and included within the 
Constitution at Part 5 Section 9. The Scheme is attached at Appendix 3. 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no financial implications for any of the above report.

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are a number of standing orders that are mandatory or are a direct repetition of 
the relevant Act or Regulation. These are included within the Orders and have not been 
amended in any way. 

7. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

7.1 Notes and agenda of the Member Officer Working Group. 

59



This page is intentionally left blank.

60



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    1/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

APPENDIX 1
CONTENTS

Standing Order Page

1. Annual meeting of the Council 3
2. Ordinary meetings of Council 4
3.
4.

Ordinary meetings of Council and Committees
Extraordinary meetings and variations

5
6

5. Private meeting to nominate the Mayor Elect 7
6. Appointment of members of committee and sub-committees in 

year including substitute members 7

7. Attendance at committees or sub-committees 8
8. Committee and sub-committee powers and duties and 

delegation to committees and sub-committees 9

9. Working parties for committees 9
10. Time and place of meetings 9
11. Notice of and summons to meetings 9
12. Chair of meeting 10
13. Quorum 10
14. Duration of meeting 10
15. Questions by the public at meetings of Council 11
16. Petitions presented to Council 13
17. Questions by Members at Council 13
18 Motions on notice 15
19. Motions without notice 15
20. Standing orders of debate 16
21. State of the city debate by Council 21
22. Previous decisions and motions 21
23. Voting 22
24. Minutes 23
25. Record of attendance 23
26.
27.
28.

Exclusion of press and public
Members’ conduct
Disturbance by public

24
24
25

61



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    2/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

29.

30.

Suspension and amendment of Council Procedure Standing 
Orders

Photography and audio/visual recording of meetings

25

25

62



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    3/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

1. ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 

1.1. Timing and business

In a year when there is an ordinary election of councillors, the annual 
meeting will take place within 21 days of the retirement of the outgoing 
councillors. In any other year, the annual meeting will take place in 
March, April or May. 

1.1.1 The Ceremonial Meeting (Mayor Making) 

The Meeting will:

i. elect a person to preside if the chair of Council (the Mayor) is 
not present; 

ii. elect the chair of Council (the Mayor); 

iii. elect the vice chair of Council (the Deputy Mayor); and

iv. receive the retiring mayor’s report.

1.1.2 The Business Meeting

The Meeting will:

i. approve the minutes of the last meeting; 

ii. receive any announcements from the Mayor and/or Head of the 
Paid Service; 

iii. upon retirement of the previous Leader, which shall be at least 
once every four years, elect the Leader of the executive (the 
Cabinet) 

iv. be notified by the Leader of  the number of members to be 
appointed to the Cabinet, those Members’ names and their 
intended portfolio of responsibilities; 

v. appoint a licensing committee, a health and wellbeing board, at 
least one overview and scrutiny committee and such other 
committees as are required or the Council considers appropriate 
to deal with matters that are neither reserved to the Council nor 
are executive functions (as set out or will be set out in Part 3(2) 
of this Constitution). No member of the Executive will be allowed 
to be a member of a Scrutiny Committee or Commission; 

vi. receive the Leader’s scheme of delegation of executive 
functions (as set out at Part 3(3) of this Constitution); 

63



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    4/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

vii. approve a programme of ordinary meetings of the Council for 
the year; and

viii. consider any business set out in the notice convening the 
meeting.

1.1.3 Unless otherwise determined by statute, the Mayor may vary the order 
of the agenda at his/her absolute discretion and may allocate or re-
allocate an appropriate time for the transaction of each item.

1.2. Selection of Councillors on Committees and Outside Bodies

1.2.1 At the annual (business) meeting, the council meeting will:

i. decide which committees to establish for the municipal year; 

ii. decide the size and terms of reference for those committees;

iii. decide the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance 
with the political balance requirements;

iv. receive nominations of councillors to serve on each committee 
and outside body; 

v. appoint to those committees, standing sub-committees and 
outside bodies except where appointment to those bodies has 
been delegated by the Council or is exercisable only by the 
executive; and

vi. appoint the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of all the Council’s 
committees, other than those which the Council has decided 
should be appointed by the committee itself. 

1.2.2 The Council may decide at subsequent meetings to dissolve 
committees, alter their terms of reference or to appoint new 
committees.

1.2.3 The Council shall always have the power to exercise any power 
delegated to a committee, sub-committee or an officer.

2. ORDINARY MEETINGS OF COUNCIL

2.1 Ordinary meetings of the Council will take place in accordance with a 
programme decided at the Council’s annual meeting. The order of 
business at ordinary meetings will be as follows:

i. elect a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor are not 
present; 

64



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    5/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

ii. approve the minutes of the last meeting; 

iii. receive any declarations of interest from members; 

iv. receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader or the head 
of paid service (which, with the exception of the Mayor, will 
normally be limited to five minutes), followed by any question on 
the announcement from a leader of an opposition group (which 
will normally be limited to one minute);

v. receive questions from, and provide answers to, the public in 
accordance with Standing Order 15; 

vi. receive petitions from the public in accordance with Standing 
Order 16; 

vii. Receive questions from, and provide answers to, Members in 
accordance with Standing Order 17.2 (was point xii);

viii. deal with any business from the last Council meeting; 

ix. receive reports from the Cabinet and Council Committees for 
consideration, including consideration of proposals from the 
Cabinet in relation to the Council’s budget and policy framework 
and reports of the overview and scrutiny committees for debate; 

x. receive reports about and receive questions and answers on 
decisions made by members of the Cabinet; 

xi. receive any other reports from the Council’s committees and 
overview and scrutiny committees and receive questions and 
answers on any of those reports; 

xii. receive any reports about and receive questions and answers 
on the business of joint arrangements and external 
organisations;

xiii. consider motions; and

xiv. consider any other business specified in the summons to the 
meeting. 

3. ORDINARY MEETINGS OF COUNCIL AND COMMITTEES

3.1 Business

Unless otherwise determined by statute, the Mayor/Chairman may vary 
the order of the agenda at his/her absolute discretion and may allocate 
or re-allocate an appropriate time for the transaction of each item.

65



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    6/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

3.2 Urgency

The Mayor/Chairman may determine that an item of business that has 
not been open to public inspection, both as an item set out in the 
agenda and any accompanying published report, may be considered 
because he or she is of the opinion that, by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the item should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4. EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS AND VARIATIONS

4.1. Calling extraordinary meetings of Council

Those listed below may request the proper officer to call Council 
meetings in addition to ordinary meetings:

(a) the Council by resolution; 

(b) the Mayor (or the Deputy mayor if the mayor is unable to act);

(c) the Monitoring Officer; or

(d) any five members of the Council if they have signed a requisition 
presented to the Mayor and he or she has refused to call a 
meeting or has failed to call a meeting within seven days of the 
presentation of the requisition. 

4.2 Calling an Extraordinary Meeting of a Committee or Sub-Committee

In the case of Committee meetings, the Chairman of a Committee or 
Sub-Committee can, in consultation with the political group 
representatives, call an extraordinary meeting of the Committee at any 
time. A special meeting will also be called if three Members of the 
Committee or Sub-Committee ask the Chief Executive in writing to call 
a meeting. 

4.3 Business at an Extraordinary Meeting of Council or a Committee or 
Sub-Committee

The business to be conducted at an extraordinary meeting shall be 
restricted to the item of business contained in the request for the 
extraordinary meeting and there shall be no consideration of previous 
minutes or reports from committees etc. except that the Mayor/ 
Chairman may at his/her absolute discretion permit other items of 
business to be conducted for the efficient discharge of the Council’s 
business.

66

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FCounty+Council+Constitution+-+ALL+ARTICLES+-+05.11.12.lgc%23CouncilCeremonialMayor.yes&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_95&tag=1105298395


     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    7/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

4.4   Variation to the meeting schedule, timings and cancellation of meetings

4.4.1 Variations to the meeting schedule will be determined by the Chairman 
after prior consultation with the Group representatives. The Mayor 
determines any variation to the Council schedule, in consultation with 
Group Leaders.

4.4.2 If there is disagreement about the timing of an additional meeting 
between the Chairman and Group representatives, the meeting will 
start at the normal time for meetings of that Committee as identified 
within the Annual Calendar of meetings approved by Council.

4.4.3 Any meeting may be cancelled if there is insufficient business to 
consider. This will be determined by the Chairman after prior 
consultation with the Group representatives. For Council, the Mayor will 
determine in consultation with Group Leaders.

5.      PRIVATE MEETING TO NOMINATE THE MAYOR ELECT

5.1 The Chief Executive will invite Members to hold a private meeting each 
year to nominate the Mayor Elect. This meeting will usually be held in 
February or March. The notice of the meeting will not be published and 
the proceedings will have no legal effect. 

5.2 There is a written protocol for the nomination of the Mayor Elect and 
this can be found within Part 5 Section 8 of the Council’s Constitution. 

 
6.      APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES AND SUB-

COMMITTEES IN YEAR INCLUDING SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

6.1 Appointment of Chair or Vice Chair in year vacancy

The Council may remove the Chairman or Vice-Chairman or they can 
resign.  In the event that the Chairman or Vice-Chairman resigns or for 
some other reason becomes permanently incapacitated, the Council 
may appoint another Chairman or Vice-Chairman at its next meeting 
following the resignation or permanent incapacity and in the meantime 
the Committee may elect a temporary Chairman or Vice-Chairman until 
a new appointment is made by the Council. Unless otherwise stated in 
the Constitution, the Chair and Vice-Chair of a Committee or Sub-
Committees shall be a Councillor. 

6.2 Appointment of Members to Committees in year vacancy 

If a vacancy arises on a Committee or Sub-Committee because a 
Member of a Committee or a Sub-Committee has resigned their seat 
by sending a written notice to the Chief Executive or because a 
Member has resigned, died or otherwise ceased to be a Member, the 
Chief Executive will appoint a Member to fill the vacancy if the relevant 
political group asks him or her to do so, in accordance with the seat 

67



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    8/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

allocations approved by Council under the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 and the Regulations made thereunder.

6.3 Substitute Members

6.3.1 Number
 
For each Committee or Sub-Committee, the Council may appoint the 
same number of substitutes in respect of each political group as that 
group holds ordinary seats on that committee or sub-committee, 
however the total number of substitutes made by a political group at a 
meeting may not exceed 50% of the political group’s seat allocation on 
that committee. 

6.3.2 Powers and duties
 
Substitute members will have all the powers and duties of any ordinary 
member of the committee but will not be able to exercise any special 
powers or duties exercisable by the person they are substituting. 
 

6.3.3 Substitution
 
Substitute members may attend meetings in that capacity only:
 
(a) to take the place of the ordinary member for whom they are the 

designated substitute; 

(b) where the ordinary member will be absent for the whole of the 
meeting; and

 
(c) after notifying the monitoring officer by noon on the day of the 

meeting of the intended substitution.  

6.3.4 When the ordinary member and a designated substitute are unable to 
attend a meeting, a nominated substitute member of the same group 
may attend the meeting after notifying the Monitoring Officer by 12 
noon.

7.      ATTENDANCE AT COMMITTEES OR SUB-COMMITTEES

7.1 The Mayor and the political group leaders can join the debate at any 
meeting of a Committee but they cannot vote at them.

7.2 A Cabinet Member can attend any meeting of a Scrutiny Committee or 
Scrutiny Commission at which a report under their portfolio is being 
considered, Cabinet Members can also be invited to attend a Scrutiny 
Committee meeting at the request of the Committee. The Member will 
not be allowed to vote.

68



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    9/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

7.3 A Member who has moved a motion at a Council meeting which has 
been referred to any Committee or Sub-Committee will have notice of 
the meeting when the motion will be considered, at which they will be 
entitled to introduce the motion. The Member will not be allowed to 
vote.

7.4 A Committee or Sub-Committee can invite any member who is not a 
member of the Committee to attend and speak at any one of their 
meetings. The Member will not be allowed to vote.

7.5 Members representing wards in respect of which a report containing 
exempt or confidential information relates, can attend the meeting at 
which the report is considered, unless the Chief Executive or the 
Monitoring Officer advises that the report must remain confidential and 
it is not necessary for Members (other than Members of the Committee 
or Sub-Committee) to be at the meeting in order to carry out their 
duties as a ward member. 

8.      COMMITTEE AND SUB-COMMITTEE POWERS AND DUTIES AND 
DELEGATION TO COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES

8.1 The Monitoring Officer is responsible for maintaining and updating the 
terms of reference of all the Council’s Committees.

8.2  All Committees can appoint a sub-committee from within its own 
membership and can delegate any of their powers and duties to the 
sub-committees, subject to any conditions the Committee sets for the 
Sub-Committee.

9. WORKING PARTIES FOR COMMITTEES 

9.1 Committees can only appoint working parties where it would not be 
appropriate to refer the matter to a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny 
Commission. The Committee will decide how many Members and 
officers working parties will have, and their terms of reference which 
will be time limited. A working party will not have any powers, but will 
make recommendations and a report to the Committee that appointed 
it.

10. TIME AND PLACE OF MEETINGS

10.1 The time and place of meetings will be determined by the monitoring 
officer and notified in the summons. 

11. NOTICE OF AND SUMMONS TO MEETINGS

11.1 The proper officer will give notice to the public of the time and place of 
any meeting in accordance with the Access to Information Standing 
Orders (Procedure Rules). At least five clear days before a meeting, 
the monitoring officer will send a summons signed by him or her by 

69



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    10/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

post to every member of the Council or leave it at their usual place of 
residence. The summons will give the date, time and place of each 
meeting and specify the business to be transacted (the agenda) and 
will be accompanied by the relevant reports. 

12. CHAIR OF MEETING

12.1 The person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power or duty of 
the Mayor/Chairman.

13. QUORUM

13.1 The quorum of a meeting of Council will be one quarter of the whole 
number of members. 

13.2 The quorum of an appointed Committee or Sub-Committee will be 
more than half of the Members present, apart from the Employment 
Committee and the Appeals Committee (Service Issues), where the 
quorum will be three.

13.3 During any meeting if the Mayor/Chairman counts the number of 
members present and declares there is not a quorum present, then the 
meeting will adjourn immediately. Remaining business will be 
considered at a time and date fixed by the Mayor/Chairman. If he or 
she does not fix a date, the remaining business will be considered at 
the next ordinary meeting. 

14. DURATION OF MEETING

14.1 Meeting recess

The Mayor/Chairman will adjourn the meeting for a period of ten 
minutes at a convenient time after two hours.

14.2 Interruption of the meeting

Where four hours have elapsed after the commencement of any 
Council meeting (and in the case of an Extraordinary meeting when 
two hours have elapsed since commencement of the meeting) the 
Mayor/Chairman shall interrupt the meeting and call for the vote 
immediately on the item under discussion.  Any Member speaking must 
immediately cease doing so and sit down. The vote will be taken 
without further discussion. This rule will not apply to meetings of a 
quasi-judicial or regulatory nature. 

14.3 Motions and recommendations not dealt with

If there are other motions or recommendations on the agenda that 
have not been dealt with within the four hour period (or two hour period 
in the case of an Extraordinary meeting), they are deemed formally 

70



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    11/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

moved and seconded (together with any amendments). No speeches 
will be allowed on these items and the vote will be taken in the usual 
way. This rule will not apply to meetings of a quasi-judicial or regulatory 
nature.

14.4 Recorded vote

If a recorded vote is called for during this process it will be taken 
immediately. 

14.5 Motions which may be moved

During the process set out in Standing Order 14.2 above, the only 
other motions which may be moved are that a matter be withdrawn or 
that a matter be delegated or referred to an appropriate body or 
individual for decision or report.

14.6 Close of the meeting

When all motions and recommendations have been dealt with, the 
Mayor/Chairman will declare the meeting closed. 

15. QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC AT MEETINGS OF COUNCIL

15.1 General

15.1.1 Members of the public who are residents of the City may ask questions 
of Members of the Cabinet, the Chair of a Committee, the Chair of an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee/Commission or a leader of a political 
group on the Council at meetings of the Council, other than the Annual 
Meeting and, except at the discretion of the Mayor, Extraordinary 
Meetings.

15.1.2 The total time allocated for Questions by the Public shall be limited to 
30 minutes.

15.2 Order of questions

The order in which questions shall be presented to the meeting shall be 
determined by a draw for each section of the meeting. The draws shall 
be conducted by the monitoring officer (or senior officer appointed for 
this purpose). The draws may be attended by any Member of the 
Council by prior notice delivered in writing to the monitoring officer 
before the deadline for submission of questions.

15.3 Notice of questions

A question may only be asked if notice has been given by delivering it 
in writing or by electronic mail to the monitoring officer no later than 
midday five working days before the day of the meeting. Each question 

71



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    12/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

must give the name and address of the questioner and must name the 
member of the Council to whom it is to be put. 

15.4 Number of questions

At any one meeting no person may submit more than two questions 
and no more than two such questions may be asked on behalf of one 
organisation. 

15.5 Scope of questions

If the monitoring officer considers a question:

 is not about a matter for which the local authority has a 
responsibility or which affects the City; 

 is illegal, improper, defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
 is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a 

meeting of the Council in the past six months; or
 requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information

he or she will inform the Mayor who will then decide whether or not to 
reject the question.

15.6 Record of questions

The monitoring officer will enter each question in a book open to public 
inspection and will immediately send a copy of the question to the 
member to whom it is to be put. Rejected questions will include 
reasons for rejection. 

Copies of all questions will be circulated to all members and will be 
made available to the public attending the meeting. 

15.7 Asking the question at the meeting

The Mayor will invite the questioner to put the question to the member 
named in the notice. Three minutes are allowed for putting the 
question. If a questioner who has submitted a written question is 
unable to be present, they may ask the Mayor to put the question on 
their behalf. The Mayor may ask the question on the questioner’s 
behalf, indicate that a written reply will be given or decide, in the 
absence of the questioner, that the question will not be dealt with. 

15.8 Supplemental question

A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one 
supplementary question without notice to the member who has replied 
to his or her original question. A supplementary question must arise 
directly out of the original question or the reply. The Mayor may reject a 

72



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    13/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

supplementary question on any of the grounds in Standing Order 15.5 
above. One minute is allowed for putting the supplementary question.

15.9 Answers

Three minutes are allowed for answering a question and two minutes 
are allowed for answering a supplementary question. Any question 
which cannot be dealt with, either because of lack of time or because 
of the non-attendance of the member to whom it was to be put, will be 
dealt with by a written answer. 

15.10 Reference of question to the Cabinet or a committee

Unless the Mayor decides otherwise, no discussion will take place on 
any question, but any member may move that a matter raised by a 
question be referred to the Cabinet or the appropriate committee or 
sub-committee. Once seconded, such a motion will be voted on without 
discussion. 

15.11 There are no speaking rights at committee meetings other than those 
laid out in the Planning Speaking Scheme, which is available to view 
within the Committees terms of reference at Part 3 Section 2 of the 
Constitution.

16. PETITIONS PRESENTED AT COUNCIL 

16.1 Petitions may be presented to the Council. The person presenting the 
petition will be allowed to address the meeting briefly (not exceeding 
one minute) to outline the aims of the petition. The Mayor will refer the 
matter to another appropriate body of the Council within whose terms 
of reference it falls without discussion and in accordance with the 
Council’s petition scheme, detailed in Part 5 Section 9 of the 
Constitution, unless a relevant item appears elsewhere on the Agenda.

17. QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS AT COUNCIL 

17.1 On reports of Cabinet or Committees

At a meeting of the Council, other than the Annual Meeting, a Member 
of the Council may ask the Leader or the chair of a committee any 
question without notice upon an item of the report of the Cabinet or a 
committee when that item is being received or under consideration by 
the Council.

17.2 Questions on notice at full Council

17.2.1 Subject to Standing Order 17.4, a member of the Council may ask:

 the Mayor; 

73

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FCounty+Council+Constitution+-+ALL+ARTICLES+-+05.11.12.lgc%23LeaderMayorSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_162&tag=513855776
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FCounty+Council+Constitution+-+ALL+ARTICLES+-+05.11.12.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_162&tag=1857307325


     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    14/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

 the Leader or member of the Cabinet; or

 the chair of any committee or sub-committee

up to two questions on any matter in relation to which the Council has 
powers or duties or which affects the City. 

17.2.2 The total time allocated for Questions under this item shall be limited to 
30 minutes.

17.3 Questions on notice at committees and sub-committees

Subject to Standing Order 17.4, a member of a committee or sub-
committee may ask the chair of it a question on any matter in relation 
to which the Council has powers or duties or which affect the City and 
which falls within the terms of reference of that committee or sub-
committee. 

17.4 Notice of questions

A member may only ask a question under Standing Order 17.2 or 17.3 
if either:

a) they have given at least five working days notice in writing of the 
question to the monitoring officer; or

b) the question relates to urgent matters, they have the consent of the 
Mayor to whom the question is to be put and the content of the 
question is given to the monitoring officer by noon on the day of the 
meeting. 

17.5 Response

An answer may take the form of:

a) a direct oral answer of up to three minutes;

b) by reference to published material of the Council which is readily 
available to Members; or

c) where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written 
answer will be circulated later to the questioner. 

17.6 Supplementary question

Every question, which will be limited to one part, will be asked and 
answered without discussion. Upon receiving the answer, the Member 
who put the question shall be allowed one supplementary question, of 
up to one minute, provided that it arises directly out of the original 
question or the reply and does not introduce any new subject matter. 

74



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    15/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

The supplementary question will be asked and answered orally, but the 
person to whom the supplementary question has been asked will have 
up to two minutes to answer or may decline to answer.

18. MOTIONS ON NOTICE

18.1 Notice

Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Standing 
Order 19, written notice of every motion, must be delivered to [the 
proper officer] by ten o’clock six clear working days before the date of 
the meeting (not including the day of the meeting). These will be 
entered in a book open to public inspection. 

18.2 Motion set out in agenda

Motions for which notice has been given will be listed on the agenda in 
the order in which notice was received, unless the member giving 
notice states, in writing, that they propose to move it to a later meeting. 

18.3 Scope

If the monitoring officer considers that a motion:

 is not about a matter for which the local authority has a 
responsibility or which affects the City; 

 is illegal, improper, defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 

 is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a 
meeting of the Council in the past six months; or

 requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information

he or she will inform the Mayor who will then decide whether or not to 
reject the motion.

19. MOTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE

19.1 The following motions may be moved without notice:

a) to appoint a chair of the meeting at which the motion is moved; 

b) in relation to the accuracy of the minutes; 

c) to change the order of business in the agenda; 

d) to refer something to an appropriate body or individual; 

75



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    16/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

e) to appoint a committee or member arising from an item on the 
summons for the meeting; 

f) to receive reports or adoption of recommendations of committees or 
officers and any resolutions following from them; 

g) to withdraw a motion; 

h) to amend a motion; 

i) to proceed to the next business; 

j) that the question be now put; 

k) to adjourn a debate; 

l) that the meeting continue beyond 4 hours in duration (2 in the case 
of an extraordinary meeting);

m) to suspend a particular standing order; 

n) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to 
Information Standing Orders; 

o) to not hear further a member named under Standing Order 27.3 or 
to exclude them from the meeting Standing Order 27.4; and

p) to give the consent of the Council where its consent is required by 
this Constitution. 

20. STANDING ORDERS OF DEBATE

20.1 No speeches until motion seconded

No speeches may be made after the mover has moved a proposal and 
explained the purpose of it until the motion has been seconded. 

20.2 Right to require motion in writing

Unless notice of the motion has already been given, the Mayor may 
require it to be written down and handed to him/her before it is 
discussed. 

20.3 Seconder’s speech

When seconding a motion or amendment, a member may reserve their 
speech until later in the debate. 

76



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    17/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

20.4 Content and length of speeches

Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to a 
personal explanation, statement of accuracy or point of order. 

No speech may exceed five minutes by the mover of the motion or by 
three minutes in all other cases without the consent of the Mayor. 

20.5 Budget Meetings

Rule 20.4 above, in respect of the length of speeches, shall not apply 
to a debate on the Budget where speeches shall not be subject to any 
time limit.

20.6 When a member may speak again

A member who has spoken on a motion may not speak again whilst it 
is the subject of debate, except:

a) to speak once on an amendment moved by another member; 

b) to move a further amendment if the motion has been amended 
since he or she last spoke; 

c) if his/her first speech was on an amendment moved by another 
member, to speak on the main issue (whether or not the 
amendment on which he or she spoke was carried);

d) in exercise of a right of reply; 

e) on a point of order; 

f) by way of personal explanation and

g) statement of accuracy.

20.7 Amendments to motions

a) An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and will 
either be:

(i) to refer the matter to an appropriate body or individual for 
consideration or reconsideration; 

(ii) to leave out words; 

(iii) to leave out words and insert or add others; or

(iv) to insert or add words. 

77



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    18/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

as long as the effect of (ii) to (iv) is not to negate the motion. 

b) Except in relation to motions that can be moved without notice 
under Standing Order 19, written notice of every intended 
amendment to a motion or to recommendations from Cabinet or the 
Council’s committees:

(i) must be delivered to the monitoring officer in its initial form not 
later than noon two working days before the date of the 
meeting (not including the day of the meeting) at which the 
motion is to be considered; and

(ii) must be delivered to the monitoring officer in its intended final 
form not later than noon one working day before the date of 
the meeting (not including the day of the meeting) at which 
the motion is to be considered. If no withdrawal, confirmation 
or change is received by the monitoring officer, it will be 
assumed that the amendment is to be considered in its initial 
form.

No other amendment may be moved at the meeting except where 
the Mayor may permit, at his or her absolute discretion and to 
ensure the efficient or proper discharge of the Council’s business, a 
further amendment or amendments to be moved.

c) Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one 
time. No further amendment may be moved until the amendment 
under discussion has been disposed of. 

d) If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original 
motion may be moved. 

e) If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place 
of the original motion. This becomes the substantive motion to 
which any further amendments are moved. 

f) After an amendment has been carried, the Mayor will read out the 
amended motion before accepting any further amendments, or if 
there are none, put it to the vote. 

20.8 Alteration of motion

a) A member may alter a motion of which he or she has given notice 
with the consent of the meeting. The meeting’s consent will be 
signified without discussion. 

b) A member may alter a motion which he or she has moved without 
notice with the consent of both the meeting and the seconder. The 
meeting’s consent will be signified without discussion. 

78

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FCounty+Council+Constitution+-+ALL+ARTICLES+-+05.11.12.lgc%23CouncilCeremonialMayor.yes&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_95&tag=1105298395


     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    19/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

c) Only alterations which could be made as an amendment may be 
made. 

20.9 Withdrawal of motion

A member may withdraw a motion which he or she has moved with the 
consent of both the meeting and the seconder.  The meeting’s consent 
will be signified without discussion. No member may speak on the 
motion after the mover has asked permission to withdraw it unless 
permission is refused. 

20.10 Right of reply

a) The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the end of the debate 
on the motion, immediately before it is put to the vote. 

b) If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion has the 
right of reply at the close of the debate on the amendment, but may 
not otherwise speak on it. 

c) The mover of the amendment has no right of reply to the debate on 
his or her amendment. 

20.11 Motions which may be moved during debate

When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved except 
the following procedural motions: 

a) to withdraw a motion; 

b) to amend a motion; 

c) to proceed to the next business; 

d) that the question be now put; 

e) to adjourn a debate; 

f) that the meeting continue beyond 4 hours in duration (or two hours 
if an extraordinary meeting);

g) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to 
Information Standing Orders; 

h) to not hear further a member named under Standing Order 27.3 or 
to exclude them from the meeting under Standing Order 27.4; and

i) that a specific standing order be suspended

79



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    20/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

20.12 Closure motions

a) A member may move, without comment, the following motions at 
the end of a speech of another member; 

(i) to proceed to the next business; 

(ii) that the question be now put; 

(iii) to adjourn a debate; or

(iv) to adjourn a meeting.

b) If a motion to proceed to next business is seconded and the Mayor 
thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, he or she will give 
the mover of the original motion a right of reply and then put the 
procedural motion to the vote. 

c) If a motion that the question be now put is seconded and the Mayor 
thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, he or she will put 
the procedural motion to the vote. If it is passed he or she will give 
the mover of the original motion a right of reply before putting 
his/her motion to the vote. 

d) If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the meeting is 
seconded and the Mayor thinks the item has not been sufficiently 
discussed and cannot reasonably be so discussed on that 
occasion, he or she will put the procedural motion to the vote 
without giving the mover of the original motion the right of reply. 

20.13 Point of order

A member may raise a point of order at any time.  The Mayor will hear 
them immediately. A point of order may only relate to an alleged 
breach of these Council Standing Orders or the law. The member must 
indicate the Standing Order or rule of law and the way in which he or 
she considers has been broken. The ruling of the Mayor on the matter 
will be final. 

20.14 Personal explanation

A member may make a personal explanation at any time.  A personal 
explanation may only relate to some material part of an earlier speech 
by the member which may appear to have been misunderstood in the 
present debate. The ruling of the Mayor on the admissibility of a 
personal explanation will be final. 

80



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    21/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

20.15 Statement of accuracy

A member may make a request to the Mayor to make a statement of 
accuracy at any time.  If permitted, the statement will be limited to the 
accuracy of a fact cited by the member speaking and may not exceed 
thirty seconds.  The ruling of the Mayor on the admissibility of a 
statement of accuracy will be final. 

21.     STATE OF THE CITY DEBATE BY COUNCIL

21.1 Calling of debate

The Leader may call a state of the City debate annually on a date and 
in a form to be agreed with the Mayor. 

21.2 Form of debate

The Leader will decide the form of the debate with the aim of enabling 
the widest possible public involvement and publicity. This may include 
holding workshops and other events prior to or during the state of the 
City debate. 

21.3 Chairing of debate

The debate will be chaired by the Mayor. 

21.4 Results of debate

The results of the debate will be:

(a) disseminated as widely as possible within the community and to 
agencies and organisations in the area; and

(b) considered by the Leader in proposing the budget and policy 
framework to the Council for the coming year. 

22. PREVIOUS DECISIONS AND MOTIONS

22.1 Motion to rescind a previous decision

A motion or amendment to rescind a decision made at a meeting of 
Council within the past six months cannot be moved unless the notice 
of motion is signed by at least five members. 

22.2 Motion similar to one previously rejected

A motion or amendment in similar terms to one that has been rejected 
at a meeting of Council in the past six months cannot be moved unless 
the notice of motion or amendment is signed by at least five members. 

81



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    22/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

Once the motion or amendment is dealt with, no one can propose a 
similar motion or amendment for six months. 

23.      VOTING

23.1 Majority

Unless this Constitution provides otherwise, any matter will be decided 
by a simple majority of those members voting and present in the room 
at the time the question was put. 

23.2 Mayor’s/Chairman’s casting vote

If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the 
Mayor/Chairman will have a second or casting vote. There will be no 
restriction on how the Mayor/Chairman chooses to exercise a casting 
vote. 

23.3 Show of hands

Unless a recorded vote is demanded under Standing Orders 23.4 and 
23.5, the Mayor/Chairman will take the vote by show of hands, or if 
there is no dissent, by the affirmation of the meeting. 

23.4 Recorded vote 

If one quarter of members present and entitled to vote at the meeting 
demand it, the names for and against the motion or amendment or 
abstaining from voting will be recorded in writing and entered into the 
minutes. 

23.5 Budget decision

At a budget decision meeting of the Council the names of the persons 
who cast a vote for the decision or against the decision or who 
abstained from voting will be recorded in writing and entered into the 
minutes of the proceedings of that meeting

For the purposes of this Standing Order:
(a) “budget decision” means a meeting of the Council at which it—

(i)makes a calculation (whether originally or by way of substitute) 
in accordance with any of sections 31A, 31B, 34 to 36A, 42A, 
42B, 45 to 49, 52ZF, 52ZJ of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992; or

(ii) issues a precept under Chapter 4 of Part 1 of that Act,
and includes a meeting where making the calculation or issuing the 
precept as the case may be was included as an item of business 
on the agenda for that meeting; and

82



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    23/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

(b) references to a vote are references to a vote on any decision 
related to the making of the calculation or the issuing of the precept 
as the case may be. 

23.6 Right to require individual vote to be recorded

Where any member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, 
their vote will be so recorded in the minutes to show whether they 
voted for or against the motion or abstained from voting. 

23.7 Voting on appointments

If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be filled 
and there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one person, then 
the name of the person with the least number of votes will be taken off 
the list and a new vote taken. The process will continue until there is a 
majority of votes for one person. 

24.      MINUTES

24.1 Signing the minutes

The Mayor/Chairman will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the 
next suitable meeting. The Mayor/Chairman will move that the minutes 
of the previous meeting be signed as a correct record. The only part of 
the minutes that can be discussed is their accuracy. 

24.2 There is no requirement to sign minutes of previous meeting at 
extraordinary meeting

Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of 
signing the minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of Schedule 
12 to the Local Government Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then 
the next following meeting (being a meeting called otherwise than 
under that paragraph) will be treated as a suitable meeting for the 
purposes of paragraph 41(1) and (2) of Schedule 12 relating to signing 
of minutes. 

24.3 Form of minutes

Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form and 
order the Mayor put them. 

25. RECORD OF ATTENDANCE

25.1 All members present during the whole or part of a meeting must sign 
their names on the attendance sheets before the conclusion of every 
meeting to assist with the record of attendance. 

83



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    24/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

26. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

26.1 Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in 
accordance with the Access to Information Standing Orders in Part 4 of 
this Constitution or Standing Order 28 (Disturbance by Public). 

27. MEMBERS’ CONDUCT

27.1 Speaking and address system

When a member speaks at full Council they must stand and address 
the meeting through the Mayor. If more than one member stands, the 
Mayor will ask one to speak and the others must sit. Other members 
must remain seated whilst a member is speaking unless they wish to 
make a point of order, a point of personal explanation or a statement of 
accuracy. This rule will not apply to Committee or Sub-Committee 
meetings.

27.2 Mayor/Chairman

When the Mayor/Chairman speaks or stands during a debate or 
otherwise indicates that the meeting should come to order, any 
member speaking at the time must stop and sit down. The meeting 
must be silent. 

27.3 Member not to be heard further

If a member persistently disregards the ruling of the Mayor/Chairman 
by behaving improperly or offensively or deliberately obstructs 
business, the Mayor/Chairman or another Member may move that the 
Member be not heard further. If seconded, the motion will be voted on 
without discussion. 

27.4 Member to leave the meeting

If the Member continues to behave improperly after such a motion is 
carried, the Mayor/Chairman or another Member may move that either 
the Member leaves the meeting or that meeting is adjourned a 
specified period. If seconded, the motion will be voted on without 
discussion. 

27.5 General disturbance

If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, 
the Mayor/Chairman may adjourn the meeting for as long as he or she 
thinks necessary.

84



     Part 4, Section 1 – Council Standing Orders 

                                                           
                                                    25/25                                              Issue date 

                         Version 002

27.6 Conflicts of Interest

Members of the Council are under a duty to base their decision making 
on a consideration of the public interest. Members must avoid conflict 
between personal interest and the public interest, declare any personal 
interest when it arises and resolve any conflict between the two 
interests, at once, and in favour of the public.

28.     DISTURBANCE BY PUBLIC

28.1 Removal of member of the public

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Mayor/Chairman 
will warn the person concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the 
Mayor/Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room. 

28.2 Clearance of part of meeting room

If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open 
to the public, the Mayor/Chairman may call for that part to be cleared. 

29.  SUSPENSION AND AMENDMENT OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE 
STANDING ORDERS

29.1 Suspension

All of these Council Standing Orders of Procedure except Standing 
Order 23.5 and 24.2 may be suspended by motion on notice or without 
notice if at least one half of the whole number of members of the 
Council are present. Suspension can only be for the duration of the 
meeting. 

29.2 Amendment

Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Council Standing Orders of 
Procedure will, when proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without 
discussion to the next ordinary meeting of the Council. 

30. PHOTOGRAPHY AND AUDIO/VISUAL RECORDING OF MEETINGS

30.1 Any member of the public may film, audio record, take photographs 
and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is 
open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available to view in Part 
5 Section 10 of the Council’s Constitution (TO BE INSERTED), 
Protocol on the use of recording, photography and the use of social 
media at public meetings of the Council.

85



This page is intentionally left blank

86



           APPENDIX 2

DRAFT PROTOCOL ON THE SELECTION OF THE MAYOR 

Summary 

The purpose of this protocol is to provide guidance to Members of the Council and to 
officers on the procedure for selecting the Mayor on an annual basis. 

1. Election Year Procedure

1.1 Following the elections, a list will be compiled and an order of seniority drawn 
up. This order of seniority will reflect the actual number of years served by each 
Member, regardless of any breaks in service.

1.2 Where new Members are elected for the first time they shall be placed at the 
bottom of the Council’s order of seniority list. The order will be allocated 
according to the number of votes cast for the new Member, expressed as a 
percentage of the total ward electorate eligible to vote on the day of poll with 
the Member achieving the highest percentage point across the City placed at 
the head of the list and the other new Members following in percentage point 
order.

1.3 The Member at the top of the list of seniority will be eligible for the role of Mayor, 
provided that they have not previously served as Mayor, and the Member and 
Group Leaders will be notified accordingly. 

1.4 The Member may opt to decline the offer of the position. In this case, the 
Member declining the role will be retained in the order of seniority list, but will 
be marked as having declined to take up the role. The Member will be re-
considered for the role the following year. 

1.5 Once the Member has accepted the role, a proposer will be sought to nominate 
the Member at the Annual Council Mayor Making Meeting. 

 
2. Non-Election Year Procedure 

2.1 The non-election year procedure will follow the same procedure as for election 
years. 

3. Deputy Mayor

3.1 The selection of the Deputy Mayor will be undertaken in accordance with the 
order of seniority list, following the same procedure for the selection of Mayor. 
Nominations for Deputy Mayor will be taken from each party, regardless of 
length of service. In taking up the role of Deputy Mayor, this will have no bearing 
on the Member taking up the role of Mayor in future years. 

87



This page is intentionally left blank

88



DRAFT

APPENDIX 3
Peterborough City Council Petitions Scheme

1. Introduction

1.1. The Council welcomes petitions and recognises that petitions are one 
way in which people can let us know their concerns. All petitions sent or 
presented to the council will receive an acknowledgement from the 
Council within 15 working days of receipt.

1.2. This acknowledgement will set out what we plan to do with the petition. 
We will treat something as a petition if it is identified as being a petition, 
or if it seems to us that it is intended to be a petition.

1.3. Paper petitions can be sent to: Democratic Services, Town Hall, 
Peterborough, PE1 1HG.

A petition template is available at Appendix 1 and this will help you to 
see what information we need in order to consider your petition under 
the terms of the council scheme.

1.4. Petitions can also be presented to a meeting of the council. These 
meetings take place approximately every 6 weeks, dates and times can 
be found here:
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeI
d=139

1.5. If you would like to present your petition to the council, or would like your 
councillor or someone else to present it on your behalf, please contact 
Governance Services on (01733) 452268 at least 10 working days 
before the meeting and they will talk you through the process.

1.6. Any written petition can be submitted at a meeting of the full Council. The 
lead petitioner will have one minute to present the petition, which will be 
received by the Council without comment. 

1.7. If your petition has received 50 signatories or more from people who live, 
work or study in Peterborough it can then trigger submission of the 
petition to the Cabinet or Scrutiny Committee or Commission alongside 
or in advance of the business your petition is seeking to affect. If this is 
the case we will discuss with the lead petitioner the options for enabling 
this to take place.

1.8. If your petition has received 500 signatories or more from people who 
live, work or study in Peterborough it can trigger a Full Council debate 
and if this is the case we will discuss with the lead petitioner the options 
for enabling this to take place.

1.9. The outcome of all petitions submitted in writing are published in a report 
for the Council’s Cabinet to consider.

89

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=139
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=139


DRAFT

2. Petitions that cannot be dealt with through this Scheme – Planning 
and Licensing decisions

2.1 The following matters are excluded from this petition scheme
• Any matter relating to a planning decision, including about a 

development plan document or community infrastructure levy (a new 
local levy that authorities can choose to introduce to help fund 
infrastructure in their area.)

• Any matter relating to an alcohol, gambling or sex establishment 
licensing decision.*

• Any matter where there is an appeals procedure in place

A ‘Licensing Decision’ is:
• Any decision in relation to an application for the grant, variation or review of any 

authorisation under Part 3 or 4 of the Licensing Act 2003 (premises licences and club 
premises licences) or any hearing or appeal in respect of any such application.

• Any decision in relation to the application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence 
under Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous  Provisions) Act 1982 (control of 
sex establishments), a request for the variation of any term, condition or restriction 
contained in such a licence or the revocation of such a licence.

• Any decision in relation to any application for a licence, permit or registration under the 
Gambling Act 2005, a request for a variation of any term, condition or restriction associated 
with any such licence, permit or registration or the revocation of any such licence, permit or 
registration.

However, a petition that alleges a systematic failure to deliver services 
in the above areas is within the scope of this Scheme (e.g. while a 
petition on an individual planning application could not be taken, a 
petition about the council’s failure to deliver an effective service for 
planning applications would be within the scope of this scheme).

2.2 If you wish to submit a petition on a planning or licensing matter, the 
arrangements are as follows:
• Petitions relating to licensing decisions should be e-mailed to  […] 

Further information on how to submit a review to a licenced premises 
is available through […]

• Petitions relating to planning decisions should be e-mailed to 
[…@Peterborough.gov.uk] or sent to the following address  […] 
Further information on how to have your say on planning applications 
is available through following this link […]

3. What are the guidelines for submitting a petition

3.1. Petitions may be submitted to the full Council, the Cabinet or Committees 
and Sub-Committees of the Council. Under the terms of this scheme they 
must include:
• A clear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition. It 

should state what action the petitioners wish the council to take 

90



DRAFT

• The name and address and signature of any person supporting the 
petition (you are deemed to have ‘signed’ the petition if you have 
added your name and address to it.)

• A minimum of 20 signatures of people who live, work or study in the 
Peterborough local authority area

3.2. Petitions should be accompanied by contact details, including an 
address, for the petition organiser who must also live, work or study in 
the Peterborough local authority area. This is the person we will contact 
to explain how we will respond to the petition. The contact details of the 
petition organiser will not be placed on the website. If the petition does 
not identify a petition organiser, we will contact signatories to the petition 
to agree who should act as the petition organiser.

3.3. If your petition does not reach the minimum requirement of 20 
signatures, particularly where the issue relates to a small locality, we will 
seek to advise you of other ways in which your views could be 
considered. A petition with fewer than 20 names will be considered if the 
signatories comprise a majority of the residents and/or stakeholders 
affected by the issue raised.

3.4. A short form is available to download here (see Appendix 2), which 
enables you to easily set out the main summary information we require 
when you submit your petition.

3.5. If you want to submit a petition to a specific meeting of the Council, 
Cabinet or any committee meeting (including scrutiny commissions) then 
you need to ensure that we receive a completed petitions submission 
form or at the very least, provide us with details of the petition subject 
matter, number of signatures and your contact details by no later than 
12.00 noon on the working day before that meeting to enable it to be 
submitted there.

3.6. Please note petitions submitted by the petitioner to meetings of the 
council will not be discussed in detail at that point, unless there is an 
agenda item specifically relating to that issue. Petitions received in this 
way will be passed to the appropriate councillor, officer or forum for 
proper consideration.

3.7. Petitions which are considered to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise 
inappropriate will not be accepted. We will explain the reasons for this in 
our acknowledgement of the petition.

3.8. In the period immediately before an election or referendum we may need 
to deal with your petition differently – if this is the case we will explain 
the reasons and discuss the revised timescale which will apply.

3.9 If a petition does not follow the guidelines set out above, the Council may 
decide not to do anything further with it. In that case, we will write to you 
to explain the reasons.

91



DRAFT

4.       What will the Council do when it receives my petition?

4.1. An acknowledgement will be sent to the petition organiser within 15 
working days of receiving the petition. It will let them know what we plan 
to do with the petition and when they can expect to hear from us again. 
It will also be published on our website and on our e-petitions site where 
all petitions received will be registered.

4.2. If we can do what your petition asks for, the acknowledgement may 
confirm that we have taken the action requested and the petition will be 
closed. If some other action is proposed or intended, the 
acknowledgement will explain this. If the petition has enough signatories 
to trigger a Council debate, then the acknowledgment will confirm this 
and tell you when and where the meeting will take place. If the petition 
needs more investigation, we will tell you the steps we plan to take.

4.3. We reserve the right to verify signatories as required. Please ensure you 
include a valid address and postcode that relates to your home address 
(if you live or study in Peterborough) or work address (if you work or run 
a business in Peterborough). These details will be taken into account 
when identifying if there are enough signatories from people who live, 
work or study in Peterborough to trigger a full Council debate.

4.4. Any petition that is a duplicate or near duplicate of another petition that 
the Council has already received will not normally be considered within 
a 12 month period although officers will exercise their discretion in 
individual cases. You are advised to check the details of previous 
petitions on our e-petitions site or contact us for advice at the start of 
your petition.

4.5. To ensure that people know what we are doing in response to the 
petitions we receive, the details of all the petitions submitted to us 
including those pending action will be published on our website, except 
in cases where this would be inappropriate.

5. Full council debates

5.1. If a petition contains more than 500 signatures from people who live, 
work or study in the city, it will trigger the right to be debated by a meeting 
of the full Council. This means that the issue raised in the petition will be 
discussed at a meeting which all councillors can attend.

5.2. If the petition organiser wishes to take up this opportunity, they will be 
given five minutes to present the petition at the next available meeting of 
the full Council. The petition will then be discussed by councillors. Full 
Council will decide how to respond to the petition at this meeting.

5.3. The petition organiser will receive written confirmation of the outcome of 
the full Council debate, of the Council’s decision and any explanation in 

92



DRAFT

the event of Council not being able to take the action which has been 
requested. 

6. E-petitions

6.1. The council welcomes e-petitions which are created and submitted 
through our website […] E-petitions must follow the same guidelines as 
paper petitions. E-petitions will not trigger the same submission or 
reporting steps as a petition in made in writing but the response will be 
published on the E-petition pages.

6.2. The petition organiser will need to provide us with their name, postal 
address and email address. You will also need to decide how long you 
would like your petition to be open for signatories. Most petitions run for 
six months, but you can choose a shorter or longer timeframe. You may 
wish to time the ending of the petition to coincide with a relevant meeting 
or decision. It may be helpful to discuss this with our petition 
administrator. If so, please contact us via email at 
nnn@Peterborough.gov.uk

6.3. When you create an e-petition, it may take five working days before it is 
published online. This is because we have to check that the content of 
your petition is suitable before it is made available for signature.

6.4. If we feel we cannot publish your petition for some reason, we will contact 
you within this time to explain. You will be able to change and resubmit 
your petition if you wish. If you do not do this within 10 working days, a 
summary of the petition and the reason why it has not been accepted 
will be published under the ‘rejected petitions’ section of the website.

6.5. When an e-petition has closed for signature, it will automatically be 
submitted to Governance Services. In the same way as a paper petition, 
you will receive an acknowledgement within 15 working days. 

6.6. A petition acknowledgement and response will be emailed to everyone 
who has signed the e-petition and elected to receive this information. 
The acknowledgment and response will also be published on this 
website.

7. How do I ‘sign’ an e-petition?

7.1. You can see all the e-petitions currently available for signature here 
[http://     …]

7.2. When you sign an e-petition you will be asked to provide your name, your 
postcode and a valid email address. When you have submitted this 
information you will be sent an email to the email address you have 
provided. This email will include a link which you must click on in order 
to confirm the email address is valid. Once this step is complete you will 
have been added as a signatory to the petition. People visiting the e-

93

mailto:nnn@peterborough.gov.uk


DRAFT

petition will be able to see your name and the ward to where your 
postcode relates in the list of those who have signed it, but your contact 
details will not be visible.

8. What can I do if I feel my petition has not been dealt with properly? 

If you feel that we have not dealt with your petition properly, please 
contact the Senior Governance Officer who will review your complaint 
and will advise you of the action which is intended. Please provide a 
short explanation of the reasons in your communication with us.

9. Other ways to have your say

9.1 Peterborough City Council is always interested in your feedback on our 
services or how we can work together better with our partners to improve 
things in our city.

9.2 There are a wide range of ways you can get involved and have your say, 
from submitting individual comments on specific issues to participating 
in consultations that regularly input to shaping our local services.

9.3 You can get involved by writing to us, attending meetings and events or 
participating online.

9.4 To find out more visit our website www.Peterborough.gov.uk 

9.5 If you have a complaint about the Council, we would like to ensure this is 
sorted out as soon as possible. If you have a problem with a Council 
service please try and talk to a member of staff, as they may be able to 
resolve it straight away.

9.6 If it is not possible for you to talk to a member of staff or you prefer to 
contact us in a different way, please see the details below.

9.7 Contact us:
By phone
.
By e-mail. 
By letter. You can write to the department or service concerned. 

94



DRAFT

Appendix A1

Peterborough City Council
Petition Template

Guidance notes:

Please use this suggested template alongside the petitions submission form 
(appendix 2 of the petitions scheme) for any paper petitions you wish to submit 
to the Council. Additional pages should also include the petition subject at the 
top of the page.

The Petition organiser must live, work/own a business or study in the City.

If you wish to ‘sign’ this petition, please put down your Peterborough address if 
you live, work (or own a business) or study in the City as this will count towards 
any threshold for debate at full Council meetings (where all Peterborough City 
Councillors attend).

Other signatories will be taken into consideration in respect of the issue being 
raised, but will not count towards the numbers required for formal debates 
under the scheme.

Please also refer to the petitions scheme available on our council website
www.Peterborough.gov.uk for further information about how we deal with 
petitions at the Council.

Petition subject:

By adding our contact details below we ask that:

Name Address (incl. postcode 
if possible)

Email address (if 
possible)

95



DRAFT

Peterborough City Council
Petitions Submission Form

Please complete the summary details on this form to assist us in directing your 
petition to the right place and include it with your petition. 

Please note contact details for the petition organiser will not be made public 
other than name and postcode.

Petition subject

Action requested by the petitioners

Number of signatures
(please give overall number if combination of paper and e-petition)

Any eligible petition with 20 signatures or over will be automatically be 
considered by the Council. However if you prefer the petition can be 
presented for submission at a relevant public meeting of the council, prior to 
consideration of the issue raised. Please advise if you wish to submit your 
petition in this way.
Yes/No (please circle)

Name of Councillor submitting petition on behalf of petitioners (if appropriate)

Name:

Address:

Tel:

Contact details of 
petition organiser

Email:

Council use only
Date petition received:

96



DRAFT

Appendix A2

APPENDIX B

Peterborough City Council Petitions Scheme

Guidance for councillors

Introduction and background

This guidance has been produced to help councillors and officers understand 
the revised petitions scheme and their role in supporting it.

This could be through: 
• Representing your Ward by:

o Presenting a Petition at a Public Meeting on behalf of a Ward 
Member (an individual may not be confident enough to present 
the issue themselves)

o Acting as Lead Petitioner on a topic that you know your 
community is concerned about.

• Being asked to consider the topic of petition at a meeting, gather 
evidence and views on the issue and then draw your conclusions and 
make recommendations (or make a decision if the issue is referred to 
you as the relevant Executive Member).

The Scheme gives local people a right to a public response if they sign an 
eligible petition (provided the petition is not of a vexatious, abusive or otherwise 
inappropriate nature).

What do I need to do?

Governance Services are responsible for the management of the Petitions 
Scheme overall and so if you have any queries that cannot be answered by 
reading this guidance or the Petitions scheme itself, please contact them for 
assistance.

Currently support to the petitions process is provided by officers in Governance 
Services 

Representing your Ward

Setting up a Petition yourself

If you decide to set up a petition on behalf of your Ward (as Lead Petitioner) or 
are advising someone else about it there are a few things you will need to 
consider first, such as whether the issue has already been considered in the 
last 12 months, is the wording factually accurate etc?

Please see the scheme for help in the first instance.

97



DRAFT

Receiving a Petition & submitting it on behalf of your ward member or group
Governance Services need to be aware of all petitions we receive as an 
organisation.

Therefore, if you receive one directly this needs to be registered with 
Governance Services along with some key basic information.

All new petitions received now need to have a summary sheet (submission 
form) attached (see Appendix 2 on the scheme) to assist with management and 
tracking of the petition. If you are handed/receive a petition by the public please 
ensure some basic contact information is taken in order that we can follow up 
on these details.

Under the scheme, a petition can be directly submitted to Governance Services 
and officers will register the petition and get agreement about how it should be 
considered/actioned and then process it accordingly. This is helpful in ensuring 
the issue is addressed promptly without the delay of waiting for a meeting to 
present it.

However, the Lead Petitioner may prefer to submit a petition to a public meeting 
of the Council, which can have more Governance value placed upon the action.

The Lead Petitioner themselves can submit the petition or (if not you), you can 
be asked to submit and present the petition on their behalf if they are unable to 
attend the meeting or feel uncomfortable with public speaking.

If you are asked to undertake this, please ensure the petition is submitted to 
Governance Services no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before that 
meeting.

The process for dealing with the petition once submitted

When a petition is first received, the council needs to respond within 15 working 
days to advise the Lead Petitioner (and others online through the e-petition 
system) what we plan to do with the petition.
Depending on the nature of the issue raised, a Governance Services Officer 
may ask for information about any related forthcoming forums/meetings/work 
activity where the issue could be considered.
Once this dialogue has taken place with all relevant Officers and Members an 
approach will be agreed and the Lead Petitioner notified.

Next steps

The Governance Services Officer will then put in place any arrangements for 
consideration at a meeting etc and normal reporting timescales will apply where 
a relevant Officer may be asked to provide a report on the issue in question.

If the issue can be considered by an Executive Member or Officer in the normal 
course of their duty, then the Governance Services Officer will make that 
request and they will have 1 month to respond.

98



DRAFT

Following the conclusion of these activities, the outcome will be passed to the 
Lead Petitioner and published on our website to enable others to see the 
Council response as laid out within our petitions scheme unless an exception 
is explicitly made by Council.

We are keen to ensure that even where the Council cannot do what the 
petitioner asks for, that the response given explains the reasoning behind it to 
aid understanding and where feasible suggests other options for support in 
getting the issue resolved.

Who do I contact if I have a query?

If the Petitions Scheme itself doesn’t have the answer, please contact
Governance Services on [(01733) …]. Email: [@Peterborough.gov.uk]

To see our Petitions scheme information up on our Council website please 
follow this link:

99



This page is intentionally left blank

100


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 15 April 2015
	6 Report of the Returning Officer
	6. Appendix 1 - Report of the Returning Officer
	Bretton North
	Declaration of results - Bretton South
	Declaration of results - Central
	Declaration of results - Dogsthorpe
	Declaration of results - East
	Declaration of results Fletton & Woodston
	Declaration of results - North
	Declaration of results - Northborough
	Declaration of results - Orton Longueville
	Declaration of results Orton Waterville
	Declaration of results - Orton with Hampton
	Declaration of results - Park
	Declaration of results - Paston
	Declaration of results - Ravensthorpe
	Declaration of results - Stanground Central
	Declaration of results - Stanground East
	Declaration of results - Werrington North
	Declaration of results - Werrington South
	Declaration of results - West


	7 Political Groups and Group Officers 2015/ 2016
	8 Appointment of Executive and Leader's Scheme of Delegation
	9 Committee Structures, Delegations and Allocations
	9. Appendix 1 - Committee Structures Delegations and Allocations
	2015-2016 Meeting Schedule
	2016-2017 Meeting Schedule Draft


	10 Appointments to Committees and Other Bodies
	11 To Approve the Standing Orders
	11. Appendix 1 - Standing Orders - Standing Orders
	11. Appendix 2 - Standing Orders - Mayor Selection Review
	11. Appendix 3 - Standing Orders - Petition Scheme




